Secretary of State

NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULEMAKING

A Statement of Need and Fiscal Impact accompanies this form.

Oregon Health Authority (Authority), Division of Medical Assistance Programs (Division) 410

Agency and Division Administrative Rules Chapter Number
Sandy Cafourek 500 Summer St. NE, Salem, OR 97301 503-945-6430

Rules Coordinator Address Telephone

RULE CAPTION
PCCM Program Dissolution of Rules and Program References

Not more than 15 words that reasonably identifies the subject matter of the agency’s intended action.

RULEMAKING ACTION
Secure approval of new rule numbers (Adopted or Renumbered rules) with the Administrative Rules Unit prior to filing

ADOPT:

AMEND: 410-141-0000, 410-141-0080, 410-141-0160, 410-141-0220, 410-141-0320, 410-141-0340, 410-141-0420, 410-141-
0860, 410-141-3080

REPEAL: 410-141-0085, 410-141-0410, 410-141-0660, 410-141-0680, 410-141-0700, 410-141-0720, 410-141-0740, 410-141-
0760, 410-141-0780, 410-141-0800, 410-141-0820, 410-141-0840

RENUMBER:
AMEND & RENUMBER:

Stat. Auth.: ORS 413.042

Other Auth.:

Stats. Implemented: ORS 413.042

RULE SUMMARY

The Primary Care Case Manager (PCCM) and related references to Primary Care Manager (PCM) programs have been eliminated
from the OHP open card service delivery system. There are no longer OHP clients enrolled in the program for care management
and oversight. As a result, it is now time to repeal the rules that have provided structure for the PCCM program from the OHP
administrative rules and any related references removed from language in other rules listed in this document.

The agency requests public comment on whether other options should be considered for achieving the rule’s substantive goals
while reducing the negative economic impact of the rule on business.

Och. |
S;p&ér%ﬂ‘/,’%li by 5 p.m. Send comments to: dmap.rules@state.or.us

Last Day for Public Comment (Last day to submit written comments to the Rules Coordinator)
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Signature Printed name Date

Note: Notices must be submitted by the 15th day of the month to be published in the next month’s Oregon Bulletin. A Rulemaking
Hearing may be requested in writing by 10 or more people, or by an association with 10 or more members, within 21 days
following notice publication or 28 days from the date notice was sent to people on the agency’s interested party mailing list,
whichever is later. In such cases a Hearing Notice must be published in the Oregon Bulletin at least 14 days before the hearing.



Secretary of State
STATEMENT OF NEED AND FISCAL IMPACT

A Notice of Proposed Rulemaking Hearing or a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking accompanies this form.

Oregon Health Authority, Division of Medical Assistant Programs (Division) 410
Agency and Division Administrative Rules Chapter Number

PCCM Program Dissolution of Rules and Program References
Rule Caption (Not more than 15 words that reasonably identifies the subject matter of the agency’s intended action.)

[n the Matter of: The amendment of 410-141-0000, 410-141-0080, 410-141-0160, 410-141-0220, 410-141-0320, 410-141-0340,
410-141-0420, 410-141-0860, 410-141-3080 and the repeal of 410-141-0085, 410-141-0410, 410-141-0660, 410-141-0680, 410-
141-0700, 410-141-0720, 410-141-0740, 410-141-0760, 410-141-0780, 410-141-0800, 410-141-0820, 410-141-0840

AMEND: 410-141-0000, 410-141-0080, 410-141-0160, 410-141-0220, 410-141-0320, 410-141-0340, 410-141-0420, 410-141-
0860, 410-141-3080

REPEAL: 410-141-0085, 410-141-0410, 410-141-0660, 410-141-0680, 410-141-0700, 410-141-0720, 410-141-0740, 410-141-
0760, 410-141-0780, 410-141-0800, 410-141-0820, 410-141-0840

Statutory Authority: ORS 413.042

Other Authority:

Stats. Implemented: ORS 413.042

Need for the Rule(s): The Primary Care Case Manager (PCCM) and related references to Primary Care Manager (PCM) programs
have been eliminated from the OHP open card service delivery system. There are no longer OHP clients enrolled in the program
for care management and oversight. As a result, it is now time to repeal the rules that have provided structure for the PCCM
program from the OHP administrative rules and any related references removed from language in other rules listed in this
document.

Documents Relied Upon and where they are available: PCM provider letter dated Oct, 9, 2009, archived Division provider notices

Statement of Cost of Compliance: None anticipated

I. Impact on state agencies, units of local government and the public (ORS 183.335(2)(b)(E)): None anticipated

o

. Cost of compliance effect on small business (ORS 183.336):

a. Estimate the number of small businesses and types of business and industries with small businesses subject to the rule:
None anticipated

b. Projected reporting, recordkeeping and other administrative activities required for compliance, including costs of professional
services: None anticipated

¢. Equipment, supplies, labor and increased administration required for compliance: Amending these rules will not add additional
reporting, record keeping or other administrative activities. None anticipated

How were small businesses involved in the development of this rule? The program is closed and there are no longer small
businesses involved.

Administrative Rule Advisory Committee consulted?: No. If not, why?: There are no clients enrolled in the PCCM program, and
the program has been discontinued. There is no impact on the community or small business. These clients have been enrolled into
CCOs in their respective service delivery areas.
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Signature Printed name Date
Administrative Rules Unit, Archives Division, Secretary of State, 800 Summer Street NE, Salem, Oregon 97310.




410-141-0000
Definitions
In addition to the definitions in OAR 410-120-0000, the following definitions apply:

(1) “Action” means in the case of a Prepaid Health Plan (PHP) or Coordinated Care
Organization (CCO):

(a) The denial or limited authorization of a requested service including the type or level
of service;

(b) The reduction, suspension, or termination of a previously authorized service;
(c) The denial in whole or in part of payment for a service;

(d) The failure to provide services in a timely manner as defined by the Division of
Medical Assistance Programs (Division);

(e) The failure of a PHP or CCO to act within the timeframes provided in 42 CFR
438.408(b); or

(f) For a member who resides in a rural service area where the PHP or CCO is the only
PHP or CCO, the denial of a request to obtain covered services outside of the PHP or
CCO provider network under any of the following circumstances:

(A) From any other provider (in terms of training, experience, and specialization) not
available within the network;

(B) From a provider not part of the network that is the main source of a service to the
member as long as the provider is given the same opportunity to become a participating
provider as other similar providers. If the provider does not choose to join the network or
does not meet the qualifications, the member is given a choice of participating providers
and is transitioned to a participating provider within 60 days;-

(C) Because the only plan or provider available does not provide the service due to
moral or religious objections;

(D) Because the member’s provider determines the member needs related services that
would subject the member to unnecessary risk if received separately, and not all related
services are available within the network; or

(E) The Authority determines that other circumstances warrant out-of-network treatment
for moral or religious objections.



(2) “Adjudication” means the act of a court or entity in authority when issuing an order,
| judgment, or decree:, as in a final CCO or MCO claims decision or OHA-the Authority

issuing a final hearings decision. This function is non-delegable under the Coordinated
Care contracts in the context of hearings and appeals.

{3} Appeal-means-arequestiorreview-of an-action:

(6)-"Behavioral-Health-Evaluation-means-a-psychiatric-or-psychelogical-assessment

used-lo-determine-the-need-for-mental-health-or-substance-use-disorderservices-

(83) “Capitated Services” means those covered services that a PHP er-Primary-Gare

ManagerPCM}-agrees to provide for a capitation payment under contract with the
Authority.

(#4) “Capitation Payment” means: monthly prepayment to a PHP for health services the
PHP provides to members.

{a-Menthly-prepayment-to-a-PHP-for-health-services-the-RPHP-provides-to-members::

-(b)-Meonthly-prepayment-to-a-RCM-to-provide-primary-care-management-services-for-a
member-enrolled-with-the- PCM-

(85) “CCO Payment” means the monthly payment to a CCO for services the CCO
provides to members in accordance with the global budget.

(96) “Certificate of Authority” means the certificate issued by DCBS to a licensed health
entity granting authority to transact insurance as a health insurance company or health
care service contractor.
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nationally-recogrized-language-proficiency-assessment-and-is-listed-in-the-Gregon

Health-Care-Interpreter-Registny:
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(+27) “Cold Call Marketing” means a PCP’s or CCO’s unsolicited personal contact with
a potential member for the purpose of marketing.

(+48) “Community Advisory Council” means the CCO-convened council that meets
regularly to ensure the CCO is addressing the health care needs of CCO members and
the community consistent with ORS 414.625.

Ho)r-Community-Health-Werker-means-an-individual-whe:

)\ Ag cor-the-individual nat l it healtl is-_buildingindivi
and-community-capacity-to-adveocate-fortheir-health:

(h-Provides-health-education-and-information-that-is-culturally-appropriate-to-the

(g)r-Assists-communityresidents-inreceiving-the-care they-need:

G@m-mumt-y Memta# Heaith Pr@gFaH%GMHPéumeaﬂs%he@Fgamza%n @#au%emce@,#er
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and-Menta l—HeaJtM;M&en»{AMH%

(4#9) “Community Standard” means typical expectations for access to the health care
delivery system in the member’s community of residence. Except where the community



standard is less than sufficient to ensure quality of care, the Division requires that the
health care delivery system available to Division members in PHPs and-to-RCM
members-take into consideration the community standard and be adequate to meet the
needs of the Division-ard-RCM-members.
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GConditienftreatment-pairs-may-contain-many-diaghoses-and-treatments-:

(4810) “Contract” means an agreement between the State of Oregon acting by and
through the Authority and a PHP or CCO to provide health services to eligible members.

(2611) “Converting MCO” means a CCO that:

(a) Is the legal entity that contracted as an MCO with the Authority as of July 1, 2011,
or;

(b) Was formed by one or more MCOs that contracted with the Authority as of July 1,
2011.

(2412) “Coordinated Care Organization (CCQO)” means a corporation, governmental
agency, public corporation, or other legal entity that is certified as meeting the criteria
adopted by the Oregon Health Authority under ORS 414.625 to be accountable for care
management and to provide integrated and coordinated health care for each of the
organization's members.

(2213) “Coordinated Care Services” mean a CCO'’s fully integrated physical health,
behavioral health services pursuant to ORS 414.651, and dental health services
pursuant to ORS 414.625(3) that a CCO agrees to provide under contract with the
Authority.

(2314) “Corrective Action or Corrective Action Plan” means a Division-initiated request
for a contractor or a contractor-initiated request for a subcontractor to develop and
implement a time specific plan for the correction of identified areas of noncompliance.

26)-"Declarationfor-Mental-Health-Treatment-means-a-written-statement-of-an
individual s-decisions-concerning-his-or-hermentalt-health-treatment-The-individual
%W%Meﬂmmmmmem@m%




(2615) “Dental Care Organization (DCO)” means a PHP that provides and coordinates
dental services as capitated services under OHP.

(2#16) “Dental Case Management Services” means services provided to ensure the
member receives dental services including a comprehensive, ongoing assessment of
the member’s dental and medical needs related to dental care and the development and
implementation of a plan to ensure the member receives those services.

(2817) “DCBS Reporting CCO” means for the purpose of OAR 410-141-3340 through
410-141-3395 a CCO that reports its solvency plan and financial status to DCBS, not a
CCO holding a certificate of authority.

(2818) “Department of Consumer and Business Services (DCBS)” means Oregon’s
business regulatory and consumer protection agency.

1-n—e—l-ud»1»ng bu@n@t%rm;ted t@m-rad}elegwhmseundwethem%es% 4mag+ng~
electrocardiograms;-labeoratery-and-pathelogy-examinations—and-physician-or-other

professional-diagneostic-er-evaluative-services:

(3419) “Disenrollment” means the act of removing a member from enroliment with a
PHP-RCM; or CCO.

(20) “Exceptional Needs Care Coordination (ENCC)” means for PHPs a specialized
case management service provided by FCHPs to members identified as aged, blind, or
disabled who have complex medical needs, consistent with OAR 410-141-0405. ENCC
includes:

(a) Early identification of those members who are aged, blind, or disabled who have
complex medical needs;

(b) Assistance to ensure timely access to providers and capitated services:

(c) Coordination with providers to ensure consideration is given to unigue needs in
treatment planning;

(d) Assistance to providers with coordination of capitated services and discharge
planning; and

(e) Aid with coordinating community support and social service systems linkage with
medical care systems, as necessary and appropriate.

(3221) “Enrollment” means the assignment of a member to a PHP;-RGM;- or CCO for
management and receipt of health services.



| (3322) “Free-Standing Mental Health Organization (MHO)” means the single MHO in
each county that provides only behavioral services and is not affiliated with a fully
capitated health plan for that service area.

| (8423) “Fully-Capitated Health Plan (FCHP)” means PHPs that contract with the
Authority to provide capitated health services including inpatient hospitalization.

| (3524) “Global Budget” means the total amount of payment as established by the
Authority to a CCO to deliver and manage health services for its members including
providing access to and ensuring the quality of those services.

| (3625) “Grievance” means a member’'s complaint to a PHP, CCO, or to a participating
provider about any matter other than an action.

(3+£26) “Grievance System” means the overall system that includes:
(a) Grievances to a PHP or CCO on matters other than actions;
(b) Appeals to a PHP or CCO on actions; and

(c) Contested case hearings through the state on actions and other matters for which
the member is given the right to a hearing by rule or state statute.

(3827) “Health Services” means:

(a) For purposes of CCOs, the integrated services authorized to be provided within the
medical assistance program as defined in ORS 414.025 for the physical medical,
behavioral health that includes mental health and substance use disorders, and dental
services funded by the Legislative Assembly based upon the Prioritized List of Health
Services;

(b) For all other purposes, the services authorized to be provided within the medical
assistance program as defined in ORS 414.025 for the physical medical, behavioral
health, and dental services funded by the Legislative Assembly based upon the
Prioritized List of Health Services.

-£39)-"Health-System- Transfermatlen (HST%means thewtfansfermatlenwaf----health care
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Health-Policy-Board-(January-24-2042)-approved-by-Sestion-2-of-204-2-Enrelled-Senate
Bill-1580-

(4628) “Holistic Care” means incorporating the care of the entire member in all aspects
of well-being including physical, psychological, cultural, linguistic, and social and
economic needs of the member. Holistic care utilizes a process whereby providers work



with members to guide their care and identify needs. This also involves identifying with
principles of holism in a system of therapeutics, especially one considered outside the
mainstream of scientific medicine as naturopathy or chiropractic and often involving
nutritional measures.

(29) "Home CCO" means enrollment in a Ceerdinated-Gare Organization{CCO} in a
given service area based upon a client's most recent permanent residency, determined
at the time of original eligibility determination or most current point of CCO enrollment
prior to hospitalization.

(4130) “Intensive Case Management (ICM)" means a specialized case management

service provided by full-capitated-health-plansCCOs to members identified as aged,
blind, or disabled who have complex medical needs including:

(a) Early identification of members eligible for ICM services;
(b) Assistance to ensure timely access to providers and capitated services;

(c) Coordination with providers to ensure consideration is given to unique needs in
treatment planning;

(d) Assistance to providers with coordination of capitated services and discharge
planning; and

(e) Aid with coordinating necessary and appropriate linkage of community support and
social service systems with medical care systems.

(4231) “Licensed Health Entity” means a CCO that has a Certificate of Authority issued
by DCBS as a health insurance company or health care service contractor.

(4332) “Line Items” means condition/treatment pairs or categories of services included
at specific lines in the Prioritized List of Health Services.

(4433) “Marketing” means any communication from a PHP or a CCO to a potential
member who is not enrolled in the PHP or CCO, and the communication can reasonably
be interpreted as intended to compel or entice the potential member to enroll in that
particular CCO.

(4534) “Medical Case Management Services” means services provided to ensure
members obtain health services necessary to maintain physical and emotional
development and health.

-~~(»4@) Mentale aalth- Assess menpt-means-a- quai#}edmmemafrheaith professional's
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regionak-or-state-allied-agencies-or-other-service-providers-

(4835) “Mental Health Organization (MHO)” means a PHP that provides capitated
behavioral services for clients.

(4936) “National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC)” means the U.S.
standard-setting and regulatory support organization created and governed by the chief
insurance regulators from the 50 states, the District of Columbia, and five U.S.
territories.

(5037) “Net Premium” means the premium, net of reinsurance premiums paid, HRA and
GME payments, and MCO tax expenses.

(5438) “Non-Participating Provider” means a provider that does not have a contractual
relationship with a PHP or CCO and is not on their panel of providers.

(6239) “Oregon Health Authority HA-or Authority Reporting CCO” means a CCO that

reports its solvency plan and financial status to the Authority under these rules.
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to-a-medi ea!—appea n%mem}

#-Programs-te-improve-the-general-community-health-(e-g--farmers-market-in-the-food

desert

7 S

h-Assistance-with-food-or-cocialreseurces-{e-g—-supplemental-food, retferral fo job

training-or-social-senvices);
H-Other-{deseribe).

‘Other Non-Medical Services” means non-state plan, health related services, also
referred o as “flexible services.” These services are provided in—lieu of traditional
benefits and are intended to improve care delivery, member health, and lower costs.
Services may effectively treat or prevent physical or behavioral healthcare conditions.
Services are consistent with the member’s treatment plan as developed by the
member’'s primary care team and documented in the member’'s medical record.

(6441) “Participating Provider’ means a provider that has a contractual relationship with
a PHP or CCO and is on their panel of providers.

-(56)-Peer\Wellness-Specialist’-means-an-individualwhe-assists-behavioral-health

services-consumers-to- reduce st+gmas andmscnmmauen anei {6 pr@mée direct SEPVIEes

Br-Assistng-tadividuals-with-access-lo-available services-and-resources-and

{ey-Addressing-barriers-io-services-and-providing-education-and-information-about
available-resources-and-behavioral-health-issues-

{57 Person-Centered-Gare-means-care-that-reflects-the-individual-patient's-strengths
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(6842) “Physician Care Organization (PCO)” means a PHP that contracts with the
Authority to provide partially-capitated health services under OHP exclusive of inpatient
hospital services.

(6043) “Potential Member” means an individual -persen who meets the eligibility
requirements to enroll in the Oregon Health Plan but has not yet enrolled with a specific
PHP or CCO.

~64)-Premidm—-means:

ta-6O-payment-when-the-payment-is- made by-the-Authority-to-the-CCO-for-purposes

services-overa-detined- pemel-eﬂ%

B2--Prmary-Care-Management-Services™means-services-that-ensure-RPCM-members
obtain-health-services-that-are-necessary-to-maintain-physical-and-emeotional

(6444) “Prioritized List of Health Services” means the listing of condition and treatment
pairs developed by the Health Evidence Review Commission for the purpose of
administering OHP health services.

(6545) “Service Area” means the geographic area within which the PHP or CCO agreed
under contract with the Authority to provide health services.

“(66)"Substance-Use-Disorder(SUD)-Services”means-assessment-treatmentand

rehabilitation-on-a-regularly-seheduled-basis- er~+n¥espanse~t&ensns for-alcohel-or-other

Med icine- Qatreﬂt—PlaeefﬂeﬂbC%}%eﬂa%RewsmMASAMmPQ &ZR}ASUDAS%
interchangeable-term-with-Ghemical-Dependency{CDy-Alcohel-and-other-brug-(AOB);




after-hours-on-callstafftelephone-and-in-person-sereening-outreachand-networking
with-hospital-emergeney-rooms-and-police:

(b)-“Emergency-Servicesmeans-covered-sepdeces-furpished-by-a-providerthatds
qualified-to-furnish-these-services-and-that-are-needed-te-evaluate-or-stabilize-an
emergenecy-situation.

. . - N . e .
and-receive-services-from-one-er-more-Allied-Agencies-or-program-components
aceording-to-the-treatment-plan- 8@Wi€~88 provided-may-nelude- estabhshmg pre-

(6846) “Treatment Plan” means a documented plan that describes the patient's
condition and procedures that will be needed, detailing the treatment to be provided and
expected outcome and expected duration of the treatment prescribed by the healthcare
professional. This therapeutic strategy is designed in collaboration with the member, the
member’s family, or the member representative and may incorporate patient education,
dietary adjustment, an exercise program, drug therapy, and the participation of nursing
and allied health professionals. Freatment-plans-are-especially-important-in-the-eptimal
management-of-complex-orchronic-illhesses-

for-physical-and-dental-health-consists-of-the-following-two-components:

(a)-"Emergency-Services-Related-to-Physical- Health™means-services-from-a-qualified
provider-necessary-to-evaluate-or-stabilize-an-emergeney-medical-condition-including
inpatient-and-cutpatient-treatment-thatmay-be-recessary-to-assure-within-reasenable
medical-probability-that the-member's-condition-is-net-likely-to-materially-deteriorate
from-or-during-a-members-discharge-from-a-facility-or-transferto-another-faciity-

(b)—‘%ewicW@%ﬁ@ﬂ%@%WWM@Wb@W&@W&M@
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(70)r-Valid-Preautherization-means-a-document- theAuih@myﬂwPHP-ePG@@—Feceives
requesting-a-health-senvice-fora-memberwho-would-be-eligible-for-the-service-at-the
time-of-the-service-and-the-dosument-contains:



{b)-Ad-data-fields

the-appropriate-billing-codes-

Stat. Auth.: ORS 413.042
Stats. Implemented: ORS 414.065

410-141-0080
Managed Care Disenroliment from Prepaid Health Plans

For purposes of this rule, “Managed Care Prepaid Health Plan” means Fully Capitated
Health Plan, Dental Care Organization, Physician Care Organization, and Mental Health
Organization.

(1) All Oregon Health Plan (OHP) member-initiated requests for disenrollment from a
Prepaid Health Plan (PHP) shall be initiated, orally or in writing, by the primary person in
the benefit group enrolled with a PHP, where primary person and benefit group are
defined in OAR 461-001-0000, 461-001-0035; and 461-110-0750, respectively. For
members who are not able to request disenroliment on their own, the request may be
initiated by the member's representative.

(2) In accordance with 42 CFR 438.56(c)(2), the Authority and PHP shall honor a
member or representative request for disenroliment for the following:

(a) Without cause:

(A) Newly eligible members may change their PHP assignment within 12 months
following the date of initial enroliment. The effective date of disenroliment shall be the
first of the month following the Division’s approval of disenrollment;

(B) At least once every 12 months;

(C) Existing members may change their PHP assignment within 30 days of the
Authority’s automatic assignment or reenroliment in a PHP;

(D) In accordance with ORS 414.645, members may disenroll from a PHP during their
redetermination (enroliment period) or one additional time during their enrollment period
based on the members choice and with Authority approval. The disenroliment shall be
considered “recipient choice.”

(b) With cause:

(A) At any time;



| (B) Division-membersMembers who disenroll from a Medicare Advantage plan shall
also be disenrolled from the corresponding PHP. The effective date of disenroliment

shall be the first of the month that the member's Medicare Advantage plan disenrollment
is effective;

(C) Members who are receiving Medicare (dual eligible) and who are enrolled in a PHP
that has a corresponding Medicare Advantage component shall be disenrolled from the
PHP if the contractor has declared its decision to disenroll members in accordance with
OAR 410-141-0060 in the annual Dual Eligible Clients with Medicare Advantage Plans
(Schedule 5) form. The effective date of disenroliment from the PHP shall be the first of
the month following the date of request for disenroliment. Dual eligible shall receive
choice counseling prior to reassignment;

(D) PHP does not, because of moral or religious objections, cover the service the
member seeks:;

(E) The member needs related services (for example a cesarean section and a tubal
ligation) to be performed at the same time, not all related services are available within
the network, and the member’s primary care provider or another provider determines
that receiving the services separately would subject the member to unnecessary risk; or

(F) Other reasons including, but not limited to, poor quality of care, lack of access to
services covered under the contract, or lack of access to participating providers
experienced in dealing with the member's health care needs. Examples of sufficient
cause include, but are not limited to:

(i) The member moves out of the PHP's service area;

(i) The member is a Native American or Alaskan Native with Proof of Indian Heritage
who wishes to obtain primary care services from his or her Indian Health Service facility,
tribal health clinic/program, or urban clinic and the Fee-For-Service (FFS) delivery
system;

(i) Continuity of care that is not in conflict with any section of 410-141-0060 or this rule.
Participation in the Oregon Health Plan, including managed care, does not guarantee

| that any Oregon-Health-Plan-member has a right to continued care or treatment by a
specific provider. A request for disenroliment based on continuity of care shall be denied
if the basis for this request is primarily for the convenience of a_a-Gregen-Health-Plan
member or a provider of a treatment, service, or supply; including, but not limited to, a
decision of a provider to participate or decline to participate in a PHP;

(iv) As specified in ORS 414.645, the Authority may approve the transfer of 500 or more
members from one PHP to another PHP if:



(I) The members’ provider has contracted with the receiving PHP and has stopped
accepting patients from or has terminated providing services to members in the
transferring PHP; and

(II) Members are offered the choice of remaining enrolled in the transferring PHP; and

(H) The member and all family (case) members shall be transferred to the provider’s
new PHP:

(IV) The transfer shall take effect when the provider's contract with their current PHP
contractual relationship ends; or on a date approved by the Division;-

(V) Members may not be transferred under section 2(E)(vi) until the Division has
evaluated the receiving PHP and determined that the PHP meets criteria established by
the Division as stated in rule; including, but not limited to, ensuring that the PHP
maintains a network of providers sufficient in numbers, areas of practice, and
geographically distributed in a manner to ensure that the health services provided under
the contract are reasonably accessible to members; and

(V1) The Division shall provide notice of a transfer to members that will be affected by
the transfer at least 90 days before the scheduled date of the transfer.

(G) Members whose request for disenroliment is denied shall receive notice in
accordance with OAR 410-141-0263 and 410-141-3263 of their right to file a grievance
or request a hearing over the denial.

(¢) If the following conditions are met:

(A) The applicant is in the third trimester of her pregnancy and has just been determined
eligible for OHP, or the OHP client has just been re-determined eligible and was not
enrolled in a PHP within the past three3 months; and

(B) The new PHP the member is enrolled with does not contract with the member's
current OB provider, and the member wishes to continue obtaining maternity services
from that non-participating OB provider; and

(C) The request to change PHP or return to FFS is made prior to the date of delivery;-

(d) For purposes of a member’s right to file a grievance or request a hearing,
disenrollment does not include the following:

(A) Transfer of a member from a PHP to a CCO or DCO;-
(B) Involuntary transfer of a member from a PHP to another PHP; or

(C) Automatic enrollment of a member in a PHP.



(e) Member disenroliment requests are subject to the following requirements:

(A) The member shall join another PHP unless the member resides in a service area
where enroliment is voluntary, or the member meets the exemptions to enrollment as
stated in 410-141-0060(4), and the member meets disenrollment criteria state in 42
CFR 438.56(c)(2), or there isn’t another PHP in the service area:

(B) The effective date of disenroliment shall be the end of the month in which
disenrollment was requested unless the Division approves retroactively;

(C) If the Division fails to make a disenroliment determination by the first day of the
second month following the month in which the member files a request for
disenrollment, the disenroliment is considered approved.

(3) The PHP may not disenroll members solely for the following reasons:

(a) Because of a physical, intellectual, developmental, or mental disability;

(b) Because of an adverse change in the member’s health;

(c) Because of the member's utilization of services, either excessive or lack thereof:
(d) Because the member requests a hearing;

(e) Because the member exercises their option to make decisions regarding their
medical care with which the PHP disagrees;

(f) Because of uncooperative or disruptive behavior resulting from the member’s special
needs.

(4) Subject to applicable disability discrimination laws, the Division may disenroll
members for cause when the PHP requests it for cause; which-that includes, but is not
limited to, the following:

(a) Member commits fraudulent or illegal acts related to the member’s participation in
the-OHP such as: permitting the use of their medical ID card by others, altering a
prescription, theft, or other criminal acts. The PHP shall report any illegal acts to law
enforcement authorities and, if appropriate, to DHS Fraud Investigations Unit at 1-888-
Fraud01 (1-888-372-8301) or
http://lwww.oregon.gov/DHS/aboutdhs/Pages/fraud/index.aspx consistent with 42 CFR
455.13;

(b) Member became eligible through a hospital hold process and placed in the Adults
and Couples category as required under 410-141-0060(4).



(c) Requests by the PHP for routine disenroliment of specific members shall include the
following procedures to be followed and documented prior to requesting disenrollment
of a member:

(A) A request shall be submitted in writing to the Coordinated Account Representative
(CAR). The PHP shall document the reasons for the request, provide written evidence
to support the basis for the request, and document that attempts at intervention were
made;-

(B) There shall be notification from the provider to the PHP at the time the problem is
identified. The notification shall describe the problem and allow time for appropriate
resolution by the PHP. Such notification shall be documented in the member's clinical
record. The PHP shall conduct provider education or training regarding the need for
early intervention, disability accommodation, and the services available to the provider;

(C) The PHP shali contact the member either verbally or in writing if it is a severe
problem to inform the member of the problem that has been identified and attempt to
develop an agreement with the member regarding the issue(s). Any contact with the
member shall be documented in the member's clinical record. The PHP shall inform the
member that their continued behavior may result in disenroliment from the PHP;

(D) The PHP shall provide individual education, disability accommodation, counseling,
and other interventions with the member in a serious effort to resolve the problem;

(E) The PHP shall contact the member's care team regarding the problem and, if
needed and with the agreement of the member, involve the care team and other
appropriate individuals working with the member in the resolution within the laws
governing confidentiality;

(F) If the severity of the problem warrants, the PHP shall develop a care plan that
details how the problem is going to be addressed and coordinate a care conference with
the member, their care team, and other individuals chosen by the member. If necessary,
the PHP shall obtain an authorization for release of information from the member for the
providers and agencies in order to involve them in the resolution of the problem. If the
release is verbal, it shall be documented in the member's record;

(G) The PHP shall submit any additional information or assessments requested by the
Division CAR;

(H) The Authority shall notify the member in writing of a disenroliment made as defined
in the section above;

(I) If the member's behavior is uncooperative or disruptive including, but not limited to,
threats or acts of physical violence, as the result of his or her special needs or disability,
the PHP shall also document each of the following:



(i) A written description of the relationship of the behavior to the special needs or
disability of the individual and whether the individual's behavior poses a direct threat to
the health or safety of others. Direct threat means a significant risk to the health or
safety of others that cannot be eliminated by a modification of policies, practices, or
procedures. In determining whether a member poses a direct threat to the health or
safety of others, the PHP shall make an individualized assessment based on
reasonable judgment that relies on current medical knowledge or best available
objective evidence to ascertain the nature, duration, and severity of the risk to the health
or safety of others:, the probability that potential injury to others shall actually occur ;
and whether reasonable modifications of policies, practices, or procedures shall mitigate
the risk to others;

(i) A PHP-staffed interdisciplinary team review that includes a mental health
professional or behavioral specialist and other health care professionals who have the
appropriate clinical expertise in treating the member's condition to assess the behavior,
the behavioral history, and previous history of efforts to manage behavior;

(iii) If warranted, a clinical assessment of whether the behavior will respond to
reasonable clinical or social interventions;

(iv) Documentation of any accommodations that have been attempted and why the
accommodations haven'’t worked;

(v) Documentation of the PHP's rationale for concluding that the member's continued
enrollment in the PHP seriously impairs the PHP's ability to furnish services to either
this particular member or other members;-

(vi) If a Primary Care Provider (PCP) terminates the member as a patient, the PHP shall
attempt to locate another PCP on their panel who will accept the member as their
patient. If needed, the PHP shall obtain an authorization for release of information from
the member in order to share the information necessary for a new provider to evaluate
whether they can treat the member. All terminations of members as patients shall be
according to the PHP's policies and shall be consistent with PHP or PCP's policies for
commercial members and with applicable disability discrimination laws. The PHP shall
determine whether the PCP’s termination of the member as a patient is based on
behavior related to the member’s disability and shall provide education to the PCP
about disability discrimination laws.

(d) In addition to the requirements as stated above, requests by the PHP for an
exception to the routine disenrollment process shall include the following:

(A) In accordance with 42 CFR 438.56, the PHP shall submit a request in writing to the
CAR for approval. An exception to the disenrollment process may only be requested for
members who have committed an act of or made a credible threat of physical violence
directed at a health care provider, the provider’s staff, other patients, or the PHP’s staff
so that it seriously impairs the PHP’s ability to furnish services to either this particular



member or other members. A credible threat means that there is a significant risk that
the member will cause grievous physical injury to others (including, but not limited to,
death) in the near future, and that risk cannot be eliminated by a modification of policies,
practices, or procedures. The PHP shall document the reasons for the request and
provide written evidence to support the basis for the request prior to requesting an
Exception to the Disenrollment Process of a Member;:

(B) The provider shall immediately notify the PHP about the incident with the member.
The notification shall describe the problem and shall be maintained for documentation
purposes;

(C) The PHP shall attempt and document contact with the member and their care team
regarding the problem and, if needed, involve the care team and other appropriate
individuals in the resolution within the laws governing confidentiality;

(D) The PHP shall provide any additional information requested by the CAR, the
Authority, or Department of Human Services assessment team;

(E) If the member’s behavior could reasonably be perceived as the result of his or her
special needs or disability, the PHP shall also document each of the following:

(i) A written description of the relationship between the behavior to the special needs or
disability of the individual and whether the individual's behavior poses a credible threat
of physical violence as defined above;

(i) In determining whether an member poses a credible threat to the health or safety of
others, the PHP shall make an individualized assessment based on reasonable
judgment that relies on current medical knowledge or best available objective evidence
to ascertain the nature, duration, and severity of the risk to the health or safety of
others,; the probability that potential injury to others will actually occur,; and whether
reasonable modifications of policies, practices, or procedures will mitigate the risk to
others;

(F) Documentation shall exist that verifies the provider or PHP immediately reported the
incident to law enforcement. The PHP shall submit a copy of the police report or case
number. If a report is not available, submit a signed entry in the ©HP-member’s clinic
record documenting the report to law enforcement or other reasonable evidence;

(G) Documentation shall exist that verifies what reasonable modifications were
considered and why reasonable modifications of policies, practices, or procedures will
not mitigate the risk to others;

(H) Documentation shall exist that verifies any past incidents and attempts to
accommodate similar problems with this member,;



(1) Documentation shall exist that verifies the PHP’s rationale for concluding that the
member's continued enroliment in the PHP seriously impairs the PHP’s ability to furnish
services to either this particular member or other members.

(e) Approval or denial of disenroliment requests shall include the following:

(A) If there is sufficient documentation, the request shall be evaluated by the PHP's
CAR; or a team of CARs who may request additional information from Ombudsman
Services; AMH--or other agencies as needed. If the request involves the member's
mental health condition or behaviors related to substance abuse, the CAR shall also
confer with the AMH's-Division’s—substaneeDivision’s substance use disorder specialist;

(B) In cases where the member is also enrolled in the PHP’s Medicare Advantage plan,
the PHP shall provide proof to the Division of CMS’ approval to disenroll the member. If
approved by the Division, the date of disenroliment from both plans shall be the
disenroliment date approved by CMS;

(C) If there is not sufficient documentation, the CAR shall notify the PHP within two (2}
business days of initial receipt what supporting documentation is needed for final
consideration of the request;

(D) The CARs shall review the request and notify the PHP of the decision within ten
working days of receipt of sufficient documentation from the PHP;-

(E) Wiritten decisions; including reasons for denials; shall be sent to the PHP within 15
working days from receipt of request and sufficient documentation from the CAR.

(5) The following procedures apply to all denied disenrollment requests:

(a) The CAR shall send the member a notice within five {5} days after the decision for
denial with a copy to the PHP and the member’s care team;-

(b) The notice shall give the reason for the denial of the disenroliment request; and the
notice of a member's right to file a complaint (as specified in 410-141-0260 through 410-
141-0266) and to request an administrative hearing in accordance with 42 CFR 438.56-
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(c) Written decisions; including the reason for denials; shall be sent to the PHP within 15
working days from receipt of request and sufficient documentation from the CAR.

(6) The following procedures apply to all approved disenroliment requests:

(a) The CAR shall send the member a notice within five days after the request was
approved with a copy to the PHP and the member's care team;-



(b) The notice shall give the disenrollment date, the reason for disenroliment, and the
notice of the member's right to file a complaint (as specified in 410-141-0260 through
410-141-0266) and to request an administrative hearing and the option to continue
enrollment in the PHP pending the outcome of the hearing, in accordance with 42 CFR
438.420. If the member requests a hearing, the disenroliment will proceed unless the
member requests continued enroliment, pending a decision;:

(c) The disenrollment effective date will be ten calendar days after the disenrollment
notice is sent to the member, unless the member requests a hearing and ongoing
enrollment, pending a hearing decision. The disenroliment will take effect immediately
upon the issuing of a hearings officer’s decision to uphold disenrollment;-

(d) If disenrollment is approved, the CAR shall contact the member's care team to
arrange enrollment in a different plan. The Division may require the member to obtain
services from FFS providers era-RCM-until such time as they can be enrolled with
another PHP;

(e) If no other PHP is available to the member, the member will be exempt from
enrollment in that type of managed care plan for 12 months. If a member who has been
disenrolled for cause is re-enrolled in the PHP, the PHP may request a disenroliment
review by the CAR. A member may not be involuntarily disenrolled from the same PHP
for a period of more than 12 months. If the member is re-enrolled after the 12-month
period and the PHP again requests disenroliment for cause, the request shall be
referred to the OHA assessment team for review.

(7) Other reasons for the PHP's request for disenrollment shall include the following:

(a) If the member is enrolled in the PHP on the same day the member is admitted to the
hospital, the PHP shall be responsible for said hospitalization. If the member is enrolled
after the first day of the inpatient stay, the member shall be disenrolled and enrolled on
the next available enroliment date following discharge from inpatient hospital services;

(b) The member has surgery scheduled at the time their enroliment is effective with the
PHP, the provider is not on the PHP's provider panel, and the member wishes to have
the services performed by that provider;

(c) The Medicare member is enrolled in a Medicare Advantage plan and was receiving
hospice services at the time of enroliment in the PHP;

(d) The member had End Stage Renal Disease at the time of enroliment in the PHP;
(e) Excluding the DCOs, if the PHP determines that the member has Third Party

Liability (TPL), the PHP will contact the Health Insurance Group (HIG) to request
disenroliment;



(f) If a PHP has knowledge of a member's change of address, the PHP shall notify the
member’s care team. The care team shall verify the address information and disenroll
the member from the PHP, if the member no longer resides in the PHP's service area.
Members shall be disenrolled if out of the PHP's service area for more than three-(3}
months, unless previously arranged with the PHP. The effective date of disenrollment
shall be the date specified by the Division and if a partial month remains, the Division
shall recoup the balance of that month's capitation payment from the PHP;

(g) The member is an inmate who is serving time for a criminal offense or confined
involuntarily in a state or federal prison, jail, detention facility, or other penal institution.
This does not include members on probation, house arrest, living voluntarily in a facility
after their case has been adjudicated, infants living with an inmate, or inmates who
become inpatients. The PHP is responsible for identifying the members and providing
sufficient proof of incarceration to the Division for review of the disenroliment request.
The Division shall approve requests for disenroliment from PHPs for members who
have been taken into custody;

(h) The member is in a state psychiatric institution.
(8) The Division has authority to initiate and disenroll members as follows:

(a) If informed that a member has a third party insurer (TPL), the Division shall refer the
case to the HIG for investigation and possible exemption from PHP enrollment. The
Division shall disenroll members who have TPL effective the end of the month in which
HIG makes such a determination. In some situations, the Division may approve
retroactive disenrollment;

(b) If the member moves out of the PHP's service area(s}, the effective date of
disenroliment shall be the date specified by the Division, and the Division shall recoup
the balance of that month's capitation payment from the PHP;

(c) If the member is no longer eligible for the Oregon Health Plan, the effective date of
disenrollment shall be the date specified by the Division;

(d) If the member dies, the last date of enroliment shall be the date of death.

(9) Unless specified otherwise in these rules or in the Division notification of
disenrollment to the PHP, all disenroliments are effective the end of the month the
Authority approves the request with the following exceptions:

(a) The Authority may retroactively disenroll or suspend enrollment when the member is
taken into custody. The effective date shall be the date the member was incarcerated.

(b) The Authority may retroactively disenroll enroliment if the member has TPL pursuant
to this rule. The effective date shall be the end of the month in which HIG makes the
determination.
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410-141-0160

Oregon Health Plan Prepaid Health Plan (PHP) Coordination and Continuity of
Care

(1) PHPs shall have written policies, procedures, and monitoring systems that ensure
the provision of Medical Case Management Services_and; delivery of primary care to
and coordination of health care services for all Bivisien-members:

(a) PHPs are to coordinate and manage capitated services and non-capitated services:
and ensure that referrals made by the PHP's providers to other providers for covered
services are noted in the appropriate Division member's clinical record;

(b) PHPs shall ensure Bivisien-members receiving Exceptional Needs Care
Coordination (ENCC) services for the aged, blind, or disabled who have complex
medical needs as described in 410-141-0405; are noted in the appropriate Division
member’s record. ENCC is a service available through Fully Capitated Health Plans
(FCHPs) or Physician Care Organizations (PCOs) that is separate from and in addition
to medical case management services;

(c) These procedures must ensure that each Bivision-member has an ongoing source of
primary care appropriate to his or her needs and a pPractitioner or entity formally
designated as primarily responsible for coordinating the health care services furnished
to the Bivisien-member in accordance with OAR 410-141-0120;

(d) FCHPs and PCOs shall communicate these policies and procedures to providers,
regularly monitor providers' compliance with these policies and procedures, and take
any corrective action necessary to ensure provider compliance. FCHPs and PCOs shall
document all monitoring and corrective action activities:

(A) PHPs shall develop and maintain a formal referral system consisting of a network of
consultation and referral pProviders, including applicable Alternative Care Settings, for
all services covered by contracts/agreements with the Division-andfor-Addictions-and



Services(GMHAS). PHPs shall ensure that access to and quallty of care prowded in all
referral settings is monitored. Referral services and services received in alternative care
settings shall be reflected in the Bivision-member's clinical record. PHPs shall establish
and follow written procedures for participating and non-participating providers in the
PHP's referral system. Procedures shall include the maintenance of records within the
referral system sufficient to document the flow of referral requests, approvals, and
denials in the system;

(B) The bivisten-member shall obtain all covered services either directly or upon referral
from the PHP er-RPGM-responsible for the service from the date of enroliment through
the date of disenrollment, except when the Bivision-member is enrolled in a Medicare
HMO or Medicare Advantage FCHP or PCO:

(i) FCHPs or PCOs with a Medicare HMO component or Medicare Advantage and
MHOs have significant and shared responsibility for prepaid services; and shall
coordinate benefits for the Bivisior-member to ensure that the Divisien-member
receives all medically appropriate services covered under respective capitation
payments;

(ii) If the Bivisien-member is enrolled in a FCHP or PCO with a Medicare HMO
component or Medicare Advantage, then Medicare covered mental health services shall
be obtained from the FCHP or PCO or upon referral by the FCHP or PCO, respectively.
Mental health services that are not covered by the FCHP or PCO; but are covered by
the MHO; shall be obtained from the MHO or upon referral by the MHO.

(C) PHPs shall have written procedures for referrals which-that ensure adequate prior
notice of the referral to referral pRProviders and adequate documentation of the referral
in the Bivision-member's clinical record:

(D) PHPs shall designate a staff member who is responsible for the arrangement,
coordination, and monitoring of the PHP's referral system;

(E) PHPs shall ensure that any staff member responsible for denying or reviewing
denials of requests for referral is a hHealth cCare pProfessional;

(F) PHPs shall have written procedures that ensure that-relevant medical, mental
health, and/er dental information is obtained from referral providers; including telephone
referrals. These procedures shall include:

(i) Review of information by the referring provider;

(it) Entry of information into the Bivisien-member's clinical record;



(iif) Monitoring of referrals to ensure that information, including information pertaining to
ongoing referral appointments, is obtained from the referral providers, reviewed by the
referring practitioner, and entered into the clinical record.

(G) PHPs shall have written procedures to orient and train their staff, participating
practitioners and their staff, and-the staff in aAlternative cGare Ssettings, and staff in
urgent and emergency care facilities in the appropriate use of the PHP's referral,
alternative care, and urgent and emergency care systems. Procedures and education
shall ensure use of appropriate settings of care;

(H) PHPs shall have written procedures whieh-that ensure that-an appropriate staff
person responds to calls from other providers requesting approval to provide care to
Bivision-members who have not been referred to them by the PHP. If the person
responding to the call is not a hiHealth cGare pProfessional, the PHP shall have
established written protocols that clearly describe when a hHealth cGare pProfessional
needs to respond to the call. These procedures and protocols shall be reviewed by the
PHP for appropriateness. The procedures shall address notification of acceptance or
denial and entry of information into the PCP's clinical record;

(I) FCHPs and PCOs shall have written policies and procedures to ensure information
on all emergency department visits is entered into the Bivision-member's appropriate
PCP's clinical record. FCHPs and PCOs shall communicate this policy and procedure to
providers, monitor providers' compliance with this policy and procedure, and take
corrective action necessary to ensure compliance;

(J) If a Bivisier-member is hospitalized in an inpatient or outpatient setting for a covered
service, PHPs shall ensure that:

(i) A notation is made in the Bivisien-member's appropriate PCP's clinical record of the
reason, date, and expected duration of the hospitalization:;

(if) Upon discharge, a notation is made in the Bivision-member's appropriate PCP's
clinical record of the actual duration of the hospitalization and follow-up plans, including
appointments for provider visits; and

(iii) Pertinent reports from the hospitalization are entered in the Bivisiecr-member's
appropriate PCP's clinical record. Such reports shall include, as applicable, the reports
of consulting practitionerspractitioners’ physical history, psycho-social history, list of
medications and dosages, progress notes, and discharge summary.

(2) For Bivisien-members living in residential facilities or homes providing ongoing care,
PHPs shall work with the appropriate staff person identified by the facility to ensure that
the Bivisieon-member has timely and appropriate access to covered services and to
ensure coordination of care provided by the PHP and care provided by the facility or
home. PHPs shall make provisions for a PCP or the facility's "house doctor or dentist" to



| provide care to Division-members who, due to physical, emotional, or medical
limitations, cannot be seen in a PCP office.

| (3) For Divisien-members living in residential facilities or homes providing ongoing care,
FCHPs and PCOs shall provide medications in a manner that is consistent with the
appropriate medication dispensing system of the facility, which meets state dispensing
laws. FCHPs and PCOs shall provide emergency prescriptions on a 24-hour basis.

| (4) For BMAR-members who are discharged to post hospital extended care, the FCHP
shall notify the appropriate Authority office at the time of admission to the skilled nursing
facility (SNF) and begin appropriate discharge planning. The FCHP is not responsible

| for the post hospital extended care benefit unless the Bivisien-member was a member
of the FCHP during the hospitalization preceding the nursing facility placement. The

i FCHP shall notify the nursing facility and the Bivisior-member no later than two full
working days prior to discharge from post hospital extended care. For Bivision-members
who are discharged to Medicare Skilled Care, the appropriate DHS office shall be
notified at the time the FCHP learns of the admission. The FCHP shall initiate
appropriate discharge planning at the time of the notification to the Authority office.

l (5) PHPs shall coordinate the services the PHP furnishes to Divisien-members with the
services the Bivisior-member receives from any other PHP (FCHP, PCO, DCO, CDO,
or MHO) in accordance with OAR 410-141-0120 (6). PHPs shall ensure that in the

| process of coordinating care, each Bivision-member's privacy is protected in
accordance with the privacy requirements of 45 CFR parts 160 and 164 subparts A and
E to the extent that they are applicable.

(6) When a Divisier-member's care is being transferred from one PHP to another or for
OHP-clients transferring from fee-for-service to a PHP, the PHP shall make every
reasonable effort within the laws governing confidentiality to coordinate transfer of the
OHP-client into the care of a PHP patrticipating provider.

(7) PHPs shall make attempts to contact targeted Division population{s} by mail,
telephone, in person, or through the Authority within the first three months of enroliment
to assess medical, mental health, or dental needs; appropriate to the PHP. The PHP
shall, after reviewing the assessment, refer the Divisien-member to histherhis PCP or
other resources as indicated by the assessment. Targeted Bivisien-population{s} shall
be determined by the PHP and approved by the Division.

(8) MHOs shall establish working relationships with the Local Mental Health Authorities
(LMHAs) and Community Mental Health Programs (CMHPs) operating in the service
area for the purposes of maintaining a comprehensive and coordinated mental health
delivery system and to help ensure Bivision-member access to mental health services
whieh-that are not provided under the capitation payment.

(9) MHOs shall ensure that Bivisien-members receiving services from extended or long
term psychiatric care programs (e.g., secure residential facilities, PASSAGES projects,



state hospital) will receive follow-up services as medically appropriate to ensure
discharge within five working days of receiving notification of discharge readiness.

(10) MHOs shall coordinate with Community Emergency Service Agencies (e.g., police,
courts and juvenile justice, corrections, and the LMHAs and CMHPs) to promote an
appropriate response to Bivisien-members experiencing a mental health crisis.

(11) MHOs shall use a multi-disciplinary team service planning and case management
approach for Bivisien-members requiring services from more than one public agency.
This approach shall help avoid service duplication and assure timely access to a range
and intensity of service options that provide individualized, medically appropriate care in
the least restrictive treatment setting (e.g., clinic, home, school, community).

(1‘2) MHOs shall consult with; and provide technical assistance to; FCHPs and PCOs to
help assure that mental health conditions of Division-members are identified early so
that intervention and prevention strategies can begin as soon as possible.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 413.042
Stats. Implemented: ORS 414.651

410-141-0220
Managed Care Prepaid Health Plan Accessibility

(1) Prepaid Health Plans (PHPs) shall have written policies and procedures that ensure
access to all covered services for all Bivision-members. PHPs shall communicate these
policies and procedures to participating providers, regularly monitor participating
providers' compliance with these policies and procedures, and take any corrective
action necessary to ensure participating provider compliance. PHPs shall document all
monitoring and corrective action activities. PHPs shall not discriminate between Bivision
members and non-Bivisier-members as it relates to benefits and covered services to
which they are both entitled:

(a) PHPs shall have written policies and procedures which-that ensure that-for 90
percent% of their Pivisien-members in each service area, routine travel time or distance
to the location of the PCP does not exceed the community standard for accessing
health care participating providers. The travel time or distance to PCPs shall not exceed
the following, unless otherwise approved by the Division:

(A) In urban areas;_—-30 miles, 30 minutes, or the community standard, whichever is
greater;

(B) In rural areas; —60 miles, 60 minutes, or the community standard, whichever is
greater.



(b) PHPs shall maintain and monitor a network of appropriate participating providers
sufficient to ensure adequate service capacity to provide availability of; and timely
access to; medically appropriate covered services for Division-members:

(A) PHPs shall have an access plan that establishes standards for access, outlines how
capacity is determined, and establishes procedures for monthly monitoring of capacity
and access; and for improving access and managing risk in times of reduced
participating provider capacity. The access plan shall also identify populations in need
of interpreter services and populations in need of accommodation under the Americans
with Disabilities Act:

(B) PHPs shall make the services it provides including: specialists, pharmacy, hospital,
vision, and ancillary services; as accessible to Divisiea-members in terms of timeliness,
amount, duration, and scope as those services are to non-Division persens-members
within the same service area. If the PHP is unable to provide those services locally, it
must so demonstrate to the Division and shall provide reasonable alternatives for
Divisioa-members to access care that must be approved by the Division. PHPs shall
have-a-monitoring-system-that-will-demonstrate to the Division -or-AMH;-as-applicable;
that the-PHP-has-surveyed-and-monitered-it surveys and monitors for equal access of
Division-members-to referral-referrals to providers, pharmacy, hospital, vision, and
ancillary services;

(C) PHPs shall have written policies and procedures and a monitoring system to ensure
that Division-members who are aged, blind, or disabled who have complex medical
needs or who are children receiving CAF (SOSCF services) or OYA services have
access to primary care, dental care, mental health providers, and referral, as applicable.
These providers shall have the expertise to treat, take into account, and accommodate
the full range of medical, dental, or mental health conditions experienced by these
Bivisien-members, including emotional, disturbance and behavioral responses, and
combined or multiple diagnoses.

(2) PHPs and-Primary-Care-Managers{PCMs}-enroliment standards:

(a) PHPs and-PCMs-shall remain open for enroliment unless the Authority has closed
enroliment because the PHP or-RCM-has exceeded their enroliment limit or does not
have sufficient capacity to provide access to services as mutually agreed upon by the

Divisioror-AMH.-as-appropriate—andDivision and the PHP-o+-RPCM;
(b) PHPs enroliment may also be closed by the Division-er-AMH -as-apprepriate due to

sanction provisions;

(c) PHPs and-RPCMs-shall accept all OHP-clients, regardless of health status at the time
of enroliment, subject to the stipulations in contracts/agreements with BES-the Division

to provide covered services-or-Primary-Care-managementservices;



(d) PHPs and-RPGMs-may confirm the enroliment status of a OHP-client by one of the
following:

(A) The individual's name appears on the monthly or weekly enroliment list produced by
the Division;

(B) The individual presents a valid medical care identification that shows he or she is
enrolled with the PHP-e-RCM;

(C) The Automated Voice Response (AVR) verifies that the individual is currently
eligible and enrolled with the PHP-er-RCM;

(D) An appropriately authorized staff member of the Authority states that the individual
is currently eligible and enrolled with the PHP-or-RCM.

(e) PHPs shall have open enroliment for 30 continuous calendar days during each
twelve-month period of January through December, regardless of the PHPs enrollment
limit. The open enrollment periods for consecutive years may not be more than 14
months apart.

(3) If a PHP is assumed by another PHP, Bivisien-members shall be automatically
enrolled in the succeeding PHP. The Bivisien-member will have 30 calendar days to
request disenroliment from the succeeding PHP. If the succeeding PHP is a Medicare
Advantage plan, those Bivisien-members who are Medicare beneficiaries shall not be
automatically enrolled but shall be offered enroliment in the succeeding PHP.

(4) If a PHP engages in an activity; such as the termination of a participating provider or
participating provider group which-that has significant impact on access in that service
area and necessitates either transferring Bivision-members to other providers or the
PHP withdrawing from part or all of a service area, the PHP shall provide the Authority
at least 90 calendar days written notice prior to the planned effective date of such
activity:

(a) A PHP may provide less than the required 90 calendar--days notice to the Authority
upon approval by the Authority when the PHP must terminate a participating provider or
participating provider group due to problems that could compromise Bivisicn-member
care, or when such a participating provider or participating provider group terminates its
contract with the PHP and refuses to provide the required 90 calendar--days notice;

(b) If DHS must notify Bivisien-members of a change in participating providers or PHPs,
the PHP shall provide the Authority with the name, prime number, and address label of
the Division-members affected by such changes at least 30 calendar days prior to the
planned effective date of such activity. The PHP shall provide Bivision-members with at
least a 30 calendar-days notice of such changes.



(5) PHPs shall have written policies and procedures that ensure scheduling and
rescheduling of Bivisien-member appointments are appropriate to the reasons for; and
urgency of; the visit:

(a) PHPs shall have written policies and procedures and a monitoring system to assure
that Bivisien-members have access to appointments according to the following
standards:

(A) FCHPs and PCOs:

(i) Emergency Care; —The Bivisior-member shall be seen immediately or referred to
an emergency department depending on the Bivisien-member's condition;

(i) Urgent Care; -— The Bivisien-member shall be seen within 48 hours or as indicated

in initial screening, in accordance with OAR 410-141-0140; and

(i) Well Care. —~The Bivisien-member shall be seen within four4 weeks or within the
community standard.

(B) DCOs:
(i) Emergency Care_——The Bivisier-member shall be seen or treated within 24-hours;

(i) Urgent Care; —The Bivision-member shall be seen within one to two weeks or as
indicated in the initial screening in accordance with OAR 410-123-1060; and

(i) Routine Care_—The Bivision-member shall be seen for routine care within an
average of eight{8} weeks and within twelve-{12} weeks or the community standard,
whichever is less, unless there is a documented special clinical reason which-that would
make access longer than 12 weeks appropriate.

(C) MHOs-and-GDOs:

() Emergency Care: —Bivisien-The member shall be seen within 24-hours or as
indicated in initial screening;

(if) Urgent Care: —Division-The member shall be seen within 48 hours or as indicated
in initial screening;

(i) Non-Urgent Care; —Divisien-The member shall be seen for an intake assessment
within twoz2 weeks from date of request.

(b) PHPs shall have written policies and procedures to schedule patients and provide
appropriate flow of Bivision-members through the office such that Bivisier-members are
not kept waiting longer than non-Bivisien member patients; under normal
circumstances. If Division-members are kept waiting or if a wait of over 45 minutes from



the time of a scheduled appointment is anticipated, Bivisien-members shall be afforded
the opportunity to reschedule the appointment. PHPs must monitor waiting time for
clients at least through complaint and appeal reviews, Divisien-termination reports, and
Bivisier-member surveys to determine if waiting times for clients in all settings are
appropriate;

(c) PHPs shall have written procedures and a monitoring system for timely follow-up
with Bivisien-member(s} when participating providers have notified the PHP that the
bivisien-member{s} have failed to keep scheduled appointments. The procedures shall
address determining why appointments are not kept, the timely rescheduling of missed
appointments, as deemed medically or dentally appropriate, documentation in the
clinical record or non-clinical record of missed appointments, recall or notification
efforts, and outreach services. If failure to keep a scheduled appointment is a symptom
of the bivisien-member's diagnosis or disability or is due to lack of transportation to the
PHP’s participating provider office or clinic, PHPs shall provide outreach services as
medically appropriate;

(d) PHPs shall have policies and procedures that ensure participating providers will
attempt to contact Bivisien-members if there is a need to cancel or reschedule the

Bivisien-member's appointment and there is sufficient time and a telephone number
available;

(e) PHPs shall have written policies and procedures to triage the service needs of
Divisien-members who walk into the PCP's office or clinic with medical, mental health,
or dental care needs. Such triage services must be provided in accordance with OAR
410-141-0140, Oregon Health Plan Prepaid Health Plan Emergency and Urgent Care
Services;

(f)-Bivision mMembers with non-emergent conditions who walk into the PCP's office or
clinic should be scheduled for an appointment as appropriate to the Bivision-member's
heeds or be evaluated for treatment within two hours by a medical, mental health, or
dental provider.

(6) PHPs shall have written policies and procedures that ensure the maintenance of 24-
hour telephone coverage (not a recording) either on site or through call sharing or an
answering service, unless this requirement is waived in writing by the Division andfer
AMH-because the PHP submits an alternative plan that will provide equal or improved
telephone access:

(a) Such policies and procedures shall ensure that telephone coverage provides access
to 24-hour care and shall address the standards for PCPs or clinics callback for
emergency, urgent, and routine issues and the provision of interpretive services after
office hours;



(b) FCHPs and PCOs shall have an adequate on-call PCP or clinic backup system
covering internal medicine, family practice, OB/Gyn, and pediatrics; as an operative
element of FCHP's and PCO's after-heursafter-nhours care;

(c) Such policies and procedures shall ensure that relevant information is entered into
the appropriate clinical record of the Division member regardless of who responds to the

call or the time of day the call is received. PHPs shall monitor for compliance with this
requirement;

(d) Such policies and procedures shall include a written protocol specifying when a
medical, mental health or dental provider must be consulted. When medically
appropriate, all such calls shall be forwarded to the on-call PCP who shall respond
immediately to calls which may be emergent in nature. Urgent calls shall be returned
appropriate to the Division member's condition, but in no event more than 30 minutes
after receipt. If information is inadequate to determine if the call is urgent, the call shall
be returned within 60 minutes;

(e) Such policies and procedures shall ensure that all persons answering the telephone
(both for the PHP and the PHP's participating providers) have sufficient communication
skills and training to reassure Bivisier-members and encourage them to wait for a return
call in appropriate situations. PHPs shall have written procedures and trained staff to
communicate with hearing impaired Bivision-members via TDD/TTY;

(f) PHPs shall monitor compliance with the policies and procedures governing 24-hour
telephone coverage and on-call PCP coverage, take corrective action as needed, and
report findings to the PHP's quality improvement committee;

(g) PHPs shall monitor such arrangements to ensure that the arrangements provide
access to 24-hour care. PHPs shall, in addition, have telephone coverage at PHP's
administrative offices that will permit access to PHPs' administrative staff during normal
office hours; including lunch hours.

(7) PHPs shall develop written policies and procedures for communicating with; and
providing care to Bivisien-members who have difficulty communicating due to a medical
condition or who are living in a household where there is no adult available to
communicate in English or where there is no telephone:

(a) Such policies and procedures shall address the provision of qualified interpreter
services by phone, in person, in PHP administrative offices, especially those of Bivisien
member services and complaint and grievance representatives, and in emergency
rooms of contracted hospitals;

(b) PHPs shall provide or ensure the provision of qualified interpreter services for
covered medical, mental health, or dental care visits; including home health visits; to
interpret for Bivision-members with hearing impairment or in the primary language of
non-English speaking Division-members. Such interpreters shall be linguistically



appropriate and be capable of communicating in English and the primary language of
the Pivision-member and be able to translate clinical information effectively. Interpreter
services shall be sufficient for the pProvider to be able to understand the Division
member's complaint,: to make a diagnosis,: to respond to the Bivisier-member's
questions and concerns:-, and to communicate instructions to the Bivisier-member;

(c) PHPs shall ensure the provision of care and interpreter services which-that are
culturally appropriate, i.e., demonstrating both awareness for and sensitivity to cultural
differences and similarities and the effect of those on the medical care of the Bivisien
member;

(d) PHPs shall have written policies and procedures that ensure compliance with
requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 in providing access to
covered services for all Bivisien-members and shall arrange for services to be provided
by nNon--participating referral providers when necessary:

(A) PHPs shall have a written plan for ensuring compliance with these requirements and
shall monitor for compliance;

(B) Such a plan shall include procedures to determine whether Bivision-members are
receiving accommodations for access and to determine what will be done to remove
existing barriers andfer to accommodate the needs of Bivisien-members;

(C) This plan shall include the assurance of appropriate physical access to obtain
covered services for all Bivisier-members including, but not limited to, the following:

(i) Street level access or accessible ramp into the facility;

(i) Wheelchair access to the lavatory;

(iii) Wheelchair access to the examination room; and

(iv) Doors with levered hardware or other special adaptations for wheelchair access.

(e) PHPs shall ensure that participating providers, their facilities, and personnel are
prepared to meet the complex medical needs of Bivisien-members who are aged, blind,

or disabled:

(A) PHPs shall have a written plan for meeting the complex medical needs of Bivisien
members who are aged, blind, or disabled;

(B) PHPs shall monitor participating providers for compliance with the access plan and
take corrective action; when necessary.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 413.042
Stats. Implemented: ORS 414.065



410-141-0320
Oregon Health Plan Prepaid Health Plan Member Rights and Responsibilities
(1) Prepaid Health Plans (PHPs) shall have written policies and procedures that ensure

Division of Medical Assistance Programs (Division) members have the rights and
responsibilities included in this rule:

(a) PHPs shall communicate these policies and procedures to participating providers;
(b) PHPs shall monitor compliance with policies and procedures governing Bivision
member rights and responsibilities, take corrective action as needed, and report findings
to the PHP's Quality Improvement Committee.

(2) The Bivisien-members shall have the following rights:

(a) To be treated with dignity and respect;

(b) To be treated by pParticipating pProviders the same as other people seeking health
care benefits to which they are entitled;

(c) To choose a PHP er-RPCM-as permitted in OAR 410-141-0060, Oregon Health Plan
Managed Care Enroliment Requirements, a Primary Care Physician (PCP) or service

site, and to change those choices as permitted in OAR 410-141-0080, Oregon Health

Plan Disenrollment from PHPs, and the PHP's administrative policies;

(d) To refer oneself directly to mental health, cGhemical dBependency or Efamily
pPRlanning sServices without getting a referral from a PCP or other pParticipating
Pprovider;

(e) To have a friend, family member, or advocate present during appointments and at
other times as needed within clinical guidelines;

(f) To be actively involved in the development of the member’s treatment plan;

(g) To be given information about the member’s condition and cGovered and niNon-
cCovered sServices to allow an informed decision about proposed treatment(sy;

(h) To consent to treatment or refuse services; and be told the consequences of that
decision, except for court ordered services;

(i) To receive written materials describing rights, responsibilities, benefits available, how
to access services, and what to do in an emergency;

(j) To have written materials explained in a manner that is understandable to the
Divisien-Mmember;



(k) To receive necessary and reasonable services to diagnose the presenting condition;

(L) To receive cGovered sServices under the Oregon Health Plan that meet generally
accepted standards of practice and is mMedically aAppropriate;

(m) To obtain covered pPreventive sServices,
(n) To have access to urgent and emergency services 24 hours a day, seven# days a
week as described in OAR 410-141-0140, Oregon Health Plan Prepaid Health Plan

Emergency and Urgent Care Services;

(o) To receive a referral to specialty practitioners for mMedically aAppropriate cGovered
Sservices;

(p) To have a cGlinical rRecord maintained whieh-that documents conditions, services
received, and referrals made;

(q) To have access to one's own cElinical Rrecord; unless restricted by statute;

(r) To transfer-ef a copy of histherthe member’s cGlinical rRecord to another pProvider;
(s) To execute a statement of wishes for treatment; including the right to accept or
refuse medical, surgical, chemical dependency, or mental health treatment and the right
to execute directives and powers of attorney for health care established under ORS 127

as amended by the Oregon Legislative Assembly 1993 and the OBRA 1990 -- Patient
Self-Determination Act;

(t) To receive written notices before a denial of; or change in; a benefit or service level is
made; unless such notice is not required by federal or state regulations;

(u) To know how to make a cGomplaint or aAppeal with the PHP and receive a
response as defined in OAR 410-141-0260 to 410-141-0266;

(v) To request an Administrative-administrative hHearing with the Authority;

(w) To receive interpreter services as defined in OAR 410-141-0220, Oregon Health
Plan Prepaid Health Plan Accessibility; and

(x) To receive a notice of an appointment cancellation in a timely manner.
(3) Division-members-The member shall have the following responsibilities:

(a) To choose; or help with assignment to; a PHP erPGM-as defined in 410-141-0060,
Oregon Health Plan Enroliment Requirements; and a PCP or service site;

(b) To treat the PHP's, pPractitioner's, and clinic's staff with respect;



(c) To be on time for appointments made with pPractitioners and other pProviders and
to call in advance either to cancel if unable to keep the appointment or if he/shethe
member expects to be late;

clinic;

(e) To use histhera PCP or clinic for diagnostic and other care except in an emergency;

(f) To obtain a referral to a specialist from the PCP or clinic before seeking care from a
specialist unless self-referral to the specialist is allowed,;

(g) To use urgent and eEmergency sServices appropriately and notify the PHP within
72 hours of an emergency;,

(h) To give accurate information for inclusion in the ¢Glinical rRecord;

(i) To help the Ppractitioner, Pprovider, or clinic obtain cGlinical rRecords from other
pPRroviders whieh-that may include signing an authorization for release of information;

()) To ask questions about conditions, treatments, and other issues related to hisfherthe
member’s care that is not understood;

(k) To use information to make informed decisions about treatment before it is given;

(L) To help in the creation of a treatment plan with the pProvider;

(m) To follow prescribed, agreed upon treatment plans;

(n) To tell the pPRractitioner or pProvider that histherthe member’s health care is covered

under-the OHP before services are received and, if requested, to show the pPractitioner
or other pRrovider the Division Medical Care |dentification form;

(o) To tell the Authority worker of a change of address or phone number;

(p) To tell the Authority worker if the mMember becomes pregnant and to notify the
Authority worker of the birth of the mMember's child,;

(q) To tell the Authority worker if any family members move in or out of the household;
(r) To tell the Authority worker if there is any other insurance available;

(s) To pay for nNon-cGovered sServices under the provisions described in OAR 410-
120-1200 and 410-120-1280;

(t) To pay the monthly OHP premium on time if so required;



(u) To assist the PHP in pursuing any third party resources available and to pay the
PHP the amount of benefits it paid for an injury from any recovery received from that
injury,

(v) To bring issues; or cGomplaints or gGrievances to the attention of the PHP; and

(w) To sign an authorization for release of medical information so that the Authority and
the PHP can get information which-that is pertinent and needed to respond to an
aAdministrative hHearing request in an effective and efficient manner.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 413.042
Stats. Implemented: ORS 414.651

410-141-0340
Oregon Health Plan Prepaid Health Plan Financial Solvency

(1) Prepaid Health Plans (PHPs) shall assume the risk for providing cGapitated
sServices under their cGontracts_and fagreements with the Division of Medical
Assistance Programs (BMARDIvision)-and/er-the-Addictions-and-Mental-Health-Division
(AN, PHPs shall maintain sound financial management procedures, maintain
protections against insolvency, and generate periodic financial reports for submission to
the Division-andlerAMH-—as-applicable:

(a) PHPs shall comply with solvency requirements specified in cGontracts_and
fagreements with the Division-and/erAMH;-as-applicable. Solvency requirements of
PHPs shall include the following components:

(A) Maintenance of restricted reserve funds with balances equal to amounts specified in
cGontracts and fagreements with the Division-and/or-AMH. If the PHP has cGontracts
and fagreements with beth-the Division-and-AMH, separate restricted reserve fund
accounts shall be maintained for each cGontract and fagreement;

(B) Protection against catastrophic and unexpected expenses related to cGapitated
sServices for PHPs. The method of protection may include the purchase of stop loss
coverage, reinsurance, self-insurance, or any other alternative determined acceptable
by the Division-andior-AMH -as-applicable. Self-insurance must be determined
appropriate by the Division-and/er-AMH;

(C) Maintenance of professional liability coverage of not less than $1,000,000 per
person per incident and not less than $1,000,000 in the aggregate either through binder
issued by an insurance carrier or by selfinsuraneeself-insurance with proof of same,
except to the extent that the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300 is
applicable;




| (D) Systems that capture, compile, and evaluate information and data concerning
financial operations. Such systems shall provide for the following:

(i) Determination of future budget requirements for the next three quarters;
(i) Determination of incurred but not reported (IBNR) expenses;

(iii) Tracking additions and deletions of Pivisier-members and accounting for
cGapitation pPayments;

(iv) Tracking claims payment;

| (v) Tracking all monies collected from third party resources on behalf of Bhvision
members; and

(vi) Documentation of and reports on the use of incentive payment mechanisms, risk-
sharing, and risk-pooling, if applicable.

(b) PHPs shall submit the following applicable reports as specified in agreements with
the Division-andfer-AMH:

(A) An annual audit performed by an independent accounting firm; containing, but not
limited to:

(i) A written statement of opinion by the independent accounting firm, based on the
firm's audit regarding the PHP's financial statements;

(i) A written statement of opinion by an independent actuarial firm about the
t assumptions and methods used in determining loss reserve, actuarial liabilities, and
related items;

(iii) Balance Sheets;

(iv) Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Net Income, and Change in Fund Balance;
(v) Statements of Cash Flows;

(vi) Notes to Financial Statements;

(vii) Any supplemental information deemed necessary by the independent accounting
firm or actuary; and

(viii) Any supplemental information deemed necessary by the Division-andfor-AMH.

(B) PHP-specific quarterly financial reports. Such quarterly reports shall include, but are
not limited to:



(i) Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Net Income;
(i) Balance Sheet;

(iii) Statement of Cash Flows;

(iv) Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Expenses;

| (v) Fee-for-service liabilities and medical and /hospital expenses that are covered by
risk-sharing arrangements;

(vi) Restricted reserve documentation;

(vii) Third party resources collections (MHO Contractor})fAMH-contracters); and

(viii) Corporate Relationships of Contractors (FCHPs, DCOs, GBOs-and PCOs) or
Incentive Plan Disclosure and Detail (MHOs).

(C) PHP-specific utilization reports;

(D) PHP-specific quarterly documentation of the Restricted Reserve. Restricted reserve
| funds of FCHPs, PCOs, and DCOs and-GBOs-shall be held by a third party. Restricted
reserve fund documentation shall include the following:

(i) A copy of the certificate of deposit from the party holding the restricted reserve funds;

(i) A statement showing the level of funds deposited in the restricted reserve fund
accounts;

(iii) Documentation of the liability that would be owed to creditors in the event of PHP
insolvency;

| (iv) Documentation of the dollar amount of that liability which-that is covered by any
identified risk-adjustment mechanisms.

(2) MHOs shall comply with the following additional requirements regarding restricted
reserve funds:

| (a) MHOs that subcapitate any work described in agreements with AMH-the Division
may require subcontractors to maintain a restricted reserve fund for the subcontractor's
portion of the risk assumed or may maintain a restricted reserve fund for all risk

| assumed under the agreement with AMHthe Division. Regardless of the alternative
selected, MHOs shall assure that the combined total restricted reserve fund balance
meets the requirements of the agreement with AMHthe Division;



(b) If the restricted reserve fund of the MHO is held in a combined account or pool with
other entities, the MHO; and its subcontractors, as applicable, shall provide a statement
from the pool or account manager that the restricted reserve fund is available to the
MHO:; or its subcontractors, as applicable, and has not been obligated elsewhere;

(c) If the MHO must use its restricted reserve fund to cover services under its
agreement with AMHthe Division, the MHO shall provide advance notice to AMH-the
Division of the amount to be withdrawn, the reason for withdrawal, when and how the
restricted reserve fund will be replenished, and steps to be taken to avoid the need for
future restricted reserve fund withdrawals;

(d) MHOs shall provide AMH-the Division access to restricted reserve funds if
insolvency occurs;

(e) MHOs shall have written policies and procedures to ensure that; if insolvency
occurs, Pivision-Mmembers and related clinical records are transitioned to other MHOs
or providers with minimal disruption.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 413.042
Stats. Implemented: ORS 414.651

410-141-0410
Oregon-Health-Blan-Rrimary-Care-Managers

(H-Primary-Care-Managers-(RCM)-previde-RPrimary-Gare-Management-Services-under

the-Oregon-Health-Plan—PCMs-provide-Primary Care-Management-Sefvices-as-defined
in-OAR-410-144-0060-RPCM-Services:

me}wdeé bw}hys&csaﬂsun&%ppaemm%ﬁhysmaﬂmas&swms—ﬁaﬁumpams—
chirepractors-podiatrists,-rural-health-elinics-migrant-and-community-health-elinies;

federally-qualified-health-centers—county-health-departmentsndian-health-service
clinies-and-tribat-health-clinies:

(b) Inpatient hospital services:

(e)-Cutpatient-hospital-services-exceptlaboratory-ray-and-maternity-management
serices:

{2)-Services-that-are-net RPCM-Case-Managed-Services-include-but-are-not-limited-to;
the-tellowing:



{ey-Durable-medical-equipment;
{d-Family-Planning-Services:

(eHmmunizations;-treatment-for-communicable-diseases,-and-treatment-for-sexually
transmitted-diseases-provided-by-a-publiely-funded-clinie:

{H--aboratery-services;
(g)r-Maternity-case-management-services;

deficieney-virus:

(m)-Routine-eye-examinations-and-dispensing-of-vision-materials:

(n)-School-based-services-provided-under-an-individual-education-plan-or-an-individual

family-servdee-plan:

{ey-targeted-case-management-services-and
Di . e

State—tmplemented-ORS-414.651
Hist-HR-7-1. 994——~fw-w&~eert~efm2~~1-94 @MAP»@LQ@@&@-B—@&G@W@}‘ 1@—1 B3: @MAP

410-141-0420

Managed Care Prepaid Health Plan Billing and Payment under the Oregon Health
Plan

(1) Providers shall submit all billings for ©HR-members following these timeframes:

(a) Submit billings within 12 months of the date of service in the following cases:



(A) Pregnancy;
(B) Eligibility issues such as retroactive deletions or retroactive enroliments;

(C) When Medicare is the primary payer, except where the MCO is responsible for the
Medicare reimbursement;

(D) Other cases that could have delayed the initial billing to the MCO, which does not
include failure of the provider to certify the member's eligibility; or

(E) Third Party Liability (TPL). Pursuant to 42 CFR 136.61, subpart G: Indian Health
Services and the amended Public Law 93-638 under the Memorandum of Agreement
that Indian Health Service and 638 Tribal Facilities are the payers of last resort and are
not considered an alternative liability or TPL.

(b) Submit billings within four months of the date of service for all other cases.

(2) Providers must be enrolled with the Division to be eligible for Authority fee-for-
service (FFS) payments. Mental health providers, except Federally Qualified Health
Centers (FQHC), shall be approved by the Local Mental Health Authority (LMHA) and
the Division and-the-Autheritys-Addictions-and-Mental-Health-(AME)-division-before
enroliment with the Authority or to be eligible for PHP payment for services. Providers
may be retroactively enrolled in accordance with OAR 410-120-1260 (Provider
Enroliment).

(3) Providers- including mental health providers; shall be enrolled with the Authority as a
Medicaid provider or an encounter-only provider prior to submission of encounter data
to ensure the encounter is accepted.

(4) Providers shall verify; before providing services; that the member is eligible for the
Division’s programs on the date of service using the Authority and PHP’s tools, as
applicable, and that the service to be provided is covered under the member's OHP
Benefit Package. Providers shall also identify the party responsible for covering the
intended service and seek preauthorizations from the appropriate payer before
providing services. Before providing a non-covered service, the provider shall complete
and have the member sign an Authority 3165, or facsimile, as described in OAR 410-
120-1280.

(5) PHPs shall pay for all capitated services. These services shall be billed directly to
the PHP, unless the PHP or the Authority specifies otherwise. PHPs may require
providers to obtain preauthorization to deliver certain capitated services.

(6) Payment by the PHP to participating providers for capitated services is a matter
between the PHP and the participating provider except as follows:



(a) PHPs shall have written procedures for processing preauthorization requests
received from any provider and written procedures for processing claims submitted from
any source. The procedures shall specify time frames for:

(A) Date stamping preauthorization requests and claims when received,

(B) Determining within a specific number of days from receipt whether a
preauthorization request or a claim is valid or non-valid;

(C) The specific number of days allowed for follow-up on pended preauthorization
requests or pended claims to obtain additional information;

(D) The specific number of days following receipt of the additional information that a
redetermination shall be made;

(E) Providing services after office hours and on weekends that require preauthorization;

(F) Sending notice of the decision with appeal rights to the member when the
determination is a denial of the requested service as specified in OAR 410-141-0263.

(b) PHPs shall make a determination on at least 95 percent of valid preauthorization
requests within two working days of receipt of a preauthorization or reauthorization
request related to urgent services, alcohol and drug services, or care required while in a
skilled nursing facility. Preauthorization for prescription drugs shall be completed and
the pharmacy notified within 24 hours. If a preauthorization for a prescription cannot be
completed within the 24 hours, the PHP shall provide for the dispensing of at least a 72-
hour supply if the medical need for the drug is immediate. PHPs shall notify providers of
such determination within two working days of receipt of the request;

(c) For expedited preauthorization requests in which the provider indicates or the PHP
determines that following the standard timeframe could seriously jeopardize the
member’s life or health or ability to attain, maintain, or regain maximum function:

(A) The PHP shall make an expedited authorization decision and provide notice as
expeditiously as the member's health condition requires and no later than three working
days after receipt of the request for service;

(B) The PHP may extend the three working day time period no more than 14 calendar
days if the member requests an extension or if the PHP justifies to the Authority a need
for additional information and how the extension is in the member’s best interest.

(d) For all other preauthorization requests, PHPs shall notify providers of an approval,
denial, or need for further information within 14 calendar days of receipt of the request
as outlined in OAR 410-141-0263. PHPs shall make reasonable efforts to obtain the
necessary information during the 14-day period. However, the PHP may use an

| additional 14 days to obtain follow-up information if the PHP justifies; to the Authority



| upon request; the need for additional information and how the delay is in the member's
best interest. If the PHP extends the timeframe, it shall give the member written notice
of the reason for the extension as outlined in OAR 410-141-0263. The PHP shall make
a determination as the member’s health condition requires but no later than the
expiration of the extension;

(e) PHPs shall pay or deny at least 90 percent of valid claims within 45 calendar days of
receipt and at least 99 percent of valid claims within 60 calendar days of receipt. PHPs
shall make an initial determination on 99 percent of all claims submitted within 60
calendar days of receipt;

(f) PHPs shall provide written notification of PHP determinations when the
determinations result in a denial of payment for services as outlined in OAR 410-141-
0263;

(g) PHPs may not require providers to delay billing to the PHP;

(h) PHPs may not require Medicare be billed as the primary insurer for services or items
not covered by Medicare and may not require non-Medicare approved providers to bill
Medicare;

(i) PHPs may not deny payment of valid claims when the potential TPR is based only on
a diagnosis, and no potential TPR has been documented in the member’s clinical
record;

(j) PHPs may not delay or deny payments because a co-payment was not collected at
the time of service.

(7) FCHPs, PCOs, and MHOs shall pay for Medicare coinsurances and deductibles up
to the Medicare or PHP’s allowable for covered services the member receives within the
PHP for authorized referral care and for urgent care services or emergency services the
member receives from non-participating providers. FCHPs, PCOs, and MHOs are not
responsible for Medicare coinsurances and deductibles for non-urgent or non-emergent
care members receive from non-participating providers.

(8) FCHPs and PCOs shall pay transportation, meals, and lodging costs for the member
and any required attendant for out-of-state services that the FCHP and PCO have
arranged and authorized when those services are available within the state, unless
otherwise approved by the Authority.

(9) PHPs shall pay for covered services provided by a non-participating provider that
were not preauthorized if the following conditions exist:

(a) It can be verified that the participating provider ordered or directed the covered
services to be delivered by a non-participating provider; and



(b) The covered service was delivered in good faith without the preauthorization; and

(c) It was a covered service that would have been preauthorized with a participating
provider if the PHP’s referral protocols had been followed;

(d) The PHP shall pay non-participating providers (providers enrolled with the Authority
that do not have a contract with the PHP) for covered services that are subject to
reimbursement from the PHP, the amount specified in OAR 410-120-1295. This rule
does not apply to providers that are Type A or Type B hospitals, as they are paid in
accordance with ORS 414.727.

(10) For Type A or Type B hospitals transitioning from Cost-Based Reimbursement
(CBR) to an Alternative Payment Methodology (APM):

(a) Sections (10)—(12) only apply to services provided by Type A or Type B hospitals to
clients or members that are enrolled in a PHP;

(b) In accordance with ORS 414.653, the Authority may upon evaluation by an actuary
retained by the Authority; on a case-by-case basis; require PHPs to continue to fully
reimburse a rural Type A or Type B hospital determined to be at financial risk for the
cost of covered services based on a cost-to-charge ratio.

(11) Redetermination of which Type A or Type B hospitals will transition off of CBR:

(a) No later than April 30, 2015, the Authority shall update the algorithm for calculation
of the CBR methodology with the most recent data available;

(b) After recalculation for each Type A and Type B hospital, any changes in a hospital’s
status from CBR to APM or from APM to CBR shall be effective January 1, 2016;

(c) The reimbursement methodology for each hospital shall be recalculated every two
years thereafter,

(d) Type A and Type B hospitals located in a county that is designated as “Frontier” will
not be subject to redetermination via the algorithm and shall remain on CBR.

(12) Non-contracted Type A or Type B hospital rates for those transitioning off of CBR:

(a) Charges shall be discounted for both inpatient and outpatient services. The initial
reimbursement rate effective January 1, 2015 shall be based on the individual hospital's
most recently filed Medicare cost report adjusted to reflect the hospital's Medicaid/OHP
mix of services;

(b) Reimbursement rates effective for the calendar year beginning January 1, 2016 shall
be based on the hospital's most recently filed Medicare cost report adjusted to reflect
the hospital's Medicaid/OHP mix of services and further adjusted by the Actuarial



Services Unit (ASU) based on the individual hospital’'s annual price increases during FY
2014-FY 2015 and the Authority’s global budget rate increase as defined by the CMS
1115 waiver; using the following formula: Current Reimbursement Rate x (1+Global
Budget Increase) / (1+Hospital Price Increase),

(c) Subsequent year reimbursement rates shall be adjusted and calculated by the
Actuarial Services Unit (ASU) based on the individual hospital’s annual price increase
and the Authority’s global budget rate increase as defined by the CMS 1115 waiver;
using the following formula: Current Reimbursement Rate x (1+Global Budget Increase)
/ (1+Hospital Price Increase);

(d) ASU shall contact hospitals regarding price increases during March of each year;
(e) Inpatient and outpatient reimbursement rates shall be calculated separately;

(f) A volume adjustment shall also be applied. ASU shall develop a risk corridor on the
volume adjustment on a hospital specific basis. The Authority shall determine when the
volume adjustment might sunset on a hospital specific basis;

(g) Non-contracted Type A or Type B hospital reimbursement rates for those
transitioning off of CBR can be found in the Rate Table section at the following:
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/healthplan/Pages/hospital.aspx.

(13) Members enrolled with PHPs may receive certain services on a FFS basis:

(a) Certain services shall be authorized by the PHP or the Community Mental Health
Program (CMHP) for some mental health services, even though the services are paid
by the Authority on a FFS basis. Before providing services, providers shall verify a
member’s eligibility via the web portal or AVR;

(b) Services authorized by the PHP or CMHP are subject to the rules and limitations of
the appropriate Authority administrative rules and supplemental information including
rates and billing instructions;

(c) Providers shall bill the Authority directly for FFS services in accordance with billing
instructions contained in the Authority administrative rules and supplemental
information;

(d) The Authority shall pay at the Medicaid FFS rate in effect on the date the service is
provided subject to the rules and limitations described in the contracts, billing
instructions, and Authority administrative rules and supplemental information;

(e) The Authority may not pay a provider for providing services for which a PHP has
received a capitation payment unless otherwise provided for in rule;



(f) When an item or service is included in the rate paid to a medical institution, a
residential facility, or foster home, provision of that item or service is not the
responsibility of the-Autherity, AMHDivision; or PHP except as provided for in Authority
administrative rules and supplemental information (e.g., capitated services that are not
included in the nursing facility all-inclusive rate); and

(g) FCHPs and PCOs that contract with FQHCs and RHCs shall negotiate a rate of
reimbursement that is not less than the level and amount of payment that the FCHP or
PCO would make for the same service furnished by a provider who is not an FQHC nor
RHC, consistent with the requirements of Balanced Budget Act (BBA) 4712(b)(2).

(14) Coverage of services through the OHP Benefit package of covered services is
limited by OAR 410-141-0500 (Excluded Services and Limitations for-GHP Clients).

(15} OHP-clients-enrolled with-a-PCM-receive-services-on-a-FES-basis:

(ay-RPCMs-are-paid-a-per-client-per-month-payment-te-provide-PCM-services-in
accordance-with-OAR-410-141-0440-(RPCM-Medical-Management);

(b} PCM ) : ) l : F ,
services,-and-outpatient-hospital-services—The-Autherity-payment-for-these-PCM
managed-services-is-contingent-upen-RcM-authorization;

{e)-Al- P(}M managed ser-weeswa{e cev@red -SeMIees- thatnshaﬂ be-billed- étrect!y t@ the

(e-The-Authority-shall-pay-atthe-FES-rate-in-effect-on-the-date-the-serviee-is- provided
subject-to-the-rules-and-limitations-deseribed-in-the-appropriate-Authority-administrative
rles-and-supplementatinformation:

(156) All ©HP-members enrolled with a PCO receive inpatient hospital services on a
FFS basis:

(a) May receive services directly from any enrolled provider;
(b) All services shall be billed directly to the Authority in accordance with FFS billing

instructions contained in the Authority administrative rules and supplemental
information;

(c) The Authority shall pay at the FFS rate in effect on the date the service is provided
subject to the rules and limitations described in the appropriate Authority administrative
rules and supplemental information.

(167)-OHP Celients not enrolled with a PHP receive services on a FFS basis:



(a) Services may be received directly from any appropriately enrolled provider;

(b) All services shall be billed directly to the Authority in accordance with billing
instructions contained in the Authority administrative rules and supplemental
information;

(c) The Authority shall pay at the FFS rate in effect on the date the service is provided
subject to the rules and limitations described in the appropriate Authority administrative
rules and supplemental information.

Stat. Auth.. ORS 413.042, 414.065, 414.615, 414.625, 414.635 & 414.651

Stats. Implemented: ORS 414.065 & 414.610 - 414.685

440-141-0660

Oregon-Health-Plan Primary- Care-Manager-(RCM)-Provision-of Health-Care
Serviees

ag%emént with- QWMLM eehe«ai As&%taﬁeeﬁreg#ams—@w&en)—

{H-Each-RCM-shall-provide-primary-care-including-Preventive-Services-

{2)-PCMs-shall-ensure-that-PCM-members-have-the-same-aceess-to-the-PCM-referral
practitioners-thatis-available-to-nen-Division-patients:

(SHRCMs-shall-provi i ate
rontor-other- PCM%anageé—semces -for- th&QGM—Member enan—engemgbas;&

(4)-RPCMs-shall-ensure-that professional-and-related-health-seprdces-provided-by-the
RPCM-or-arranged-through-referral-by-the-PCM-to-anether-provider-are-neted-in-the-RCM
Members-Glinical-Recerd-

Stat-Auth-—OR&413-042
Stats—tmplemented-ORS-414-654
410-141-0680

Oregon-Health-Plan-Primary Care-Manager Emergency-and-Urgent-Care-Medical
Services

PCMs-shall-ensure-the-provision-of triage-services-for-all PEM-Members-on-a-24-hour;
seven-day-a-week-basis:



(-PCMs-shallensure-that-appropriate-Emergensy
Members-on-a-24-hour-seven-day-a-week-basis:

(2yRPCMs-shall-ensure-the-availability-of-an-after-hours-call-in-system-adeguate-to-triage
Urgent-Gare-Services-and-emergency-calls-from-RGM-Members-

3rRCMs-shall-have-prece
arriving-PCM-Members-pres
meel- %P@MM@H%@GFS—@R%

(D-Buring-normalhours-of operation- PCMs-shall-ensure-that-a-health-professionakis
available-to-triage-Urgent-GCare-and-emergencies-for-Members-as-follows:

{a)-RPCM-Members-who-walk-in-for-service-shall-be-assessed-to-determine-appropriate
action;

{e)-Phone-calls-from-other-Providersregues
assessed-to-determine-appropriate-action:

(5)-PCMs-shall-have procedures-foreducating- RCM-Members-on-how-to-access-Urgent
Gate-and-emergency-care—RPGCMs-shall-have-methods-for-tracking-inappropriate-use-of

outpatient-hospital-emergency-care-and-shall- take-action-to-improve-appropriate-use-of
Urgent-Care-and-emergency-care-setings-

Stat-Auth--ORS4143.042
Stats-tmplemented: @RS 414651
Hist—HR-7-1994£-8&-¢cei 04

410-444-0700
OHP-RCM-Continuity-of Care
(4)-PCMs shal-ensure

and-note-in-the-RCM- Membe%&me&ea#eeemﬁ—ref%&maée%y%he«@#m&yw@am
Managerto-otherproviders-for-cevered-services:

{a)-RCMs- shaﬂ maintain-a-network-of-consultation- anéwref@rrakpr@wders f@rau RGM

referrals:

{by-PCMs-shall- have p@%+€iesaﬂd@reeeéures fesw the» use@ﬂurgent -GaFe- centersmand




{e)}-PCMs-shall-have-procedure
providers-and-adeguate-doc %%@%@Wh&m%%e%@mb@p&me@eai
record:

()}-PCMs-shall-personally-take-responsibility-for-or-desighate-a- staff-memberwho-is
respensibl le-for—arrangement-coordination-and-menitering-of-the-Primary-Gare
Managers-referral-system;

(@-}Q(—)M&shaﬂ#—xa#qu-r@eedm&%ha%ensumha%%etevaﬁ%medieauﬂfermaﬁemg
obtained-from-referral-providers—These-procedures-shall-nelude:

(A)-Review-of-information-by-the-Primary-GCare-Manager;

(B)-Ertry-of-information-into-the-RCM-Members-medical-record;

(H-PCMs-shall-have-proce

appropriate-use-of-the-2 Hmaweafewaaagepsmwem -Preceéwes—and
education-shall-ensure-use-of-appropriate-settings-of-care;

info F%i@%m%%wwmm%mmrmﬁeﬁmm
referral-source);

th-RCMs-shall-have-precedures-which-ensure-that-an- appropriate-health-professional
wlwwﬂm@eﬁmmmwww@m&%w
M PP e oy \ALLCY

Q}Q@M@—sha#en@r—meéieauﬂfwmaﬁen—ﬁpem—appﬁteved@me?geﬂeywsi%s%me-thep@wi
Members-medical-record:

()-H-a-RCM-Member-is-hespitalized-RCMs-shall-ensure-that:

(AFA-notation-is-made-in-the-RGM-Members- medical-record-of-the-reason-dateand
expected-duration-of-hospitalization;

(BY-A-netation-is-made-i
a%%%m%nﬁmw%tmwmpw%é{%mm&ntm
practitionervisits-and



F@G@Fé*@%(@ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%hﬁihﬂ%d@%h@ mpeﬁs—e@eeﬁsultmg«pmem f@ﬂ@%ﬁé Jsfhaﬂ
decument-discharge-planning-

() PEMs- 5hali have-written- p@he-r@s ahe p{ee@dur«esvthatweﬂ%uremamt@nancemef»--a

(23-For-RPCM-Members-living-in-residential faciliies-or-homes-providing-engoing-care;
RCMs-shall-eitherprovide-the-RGCM- Member%;anmary care ofr-make- pr@v;smns for-the

Stat-Auth-—ORS-413-842
Stats—implemented-0ORS-444-651

HistHE-4 "!QQA f.-&-cort-eb-2 404
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410-141-0720

il y d}soi@e,e@ﬂd deeumeﬂHhe—medlfeaL{:Gndmen»ef—th&?@i\/i%embepa%theex&emwaf
covered-services-and/or PCM-Case-managed-services-received-by-RCM-Members-from
the-PCM-or-the- RPCM-referral-Provider-

decuments a%Hype&ef—eme-dehvere&wheiheF—durmgme{:aﬁer—@meewheur—s

(2-The-medical-record-shal-nclude-data -thatforms-the-basis-of the-diagnestic
rmpr@@&en or-the-RGM-Members- chﬂref cempiant—suﬁ%e&ent tewjustify any furth@r

med@aweee#d—%h&nw%—memd&

(b)-Nextof-kin-sponser-orresponsible-party-and
(e} Medical-history-including-baseline-data-and-preventive-care-fisk-assessment:

(»;3:»-)»~2¥1h@med~iea¥~ree@rei~5h-a¥Hﬂ@-tude,%@%&%@@%&#em~be-rw%e%m%»aw-a—eh~-ef~the
following-data-as-applicable:

{a)-Date-of service;



{by-Name-and-title-of- person-performing-the-service;

() Pert i L : 5.
(d)>-Medications-administered-and-preseribed:
(e)-Referrals-and-resulis-ofreferrals:
(H-beseription-of-treatment:
(g)-Recommendations-for-additional-treatments-or-censultations;
th)-Medical-goods-or-supplies-dispensed-or-prescribed;

(i)-Fests-ordered-or-performed-and-results;

{-Health-education-and-medical-social-servicesprovided;-and

keeping-system-tha
@xt@m&lmed{oaLaad;twm4ts%&m4wwwd4aeﬂﬁa%a&adeq&a&e@ys@m~f&r
follow-up-treatment-All-Member-medical-records-shall-be-maintained-for-at-leastfour
l@ﬁ%&ﬂ@ﬁh@éﬁ%@@fﬁ%@é@a%%wmk%m&mé&m%eﬂw

the-appli c—abE@medeptypewmchevepﬁme—peﬂ@d—%mngep

(a) PCM@ shah- have written- preceéures-that -eRsHFe- the mam’e@nane@-and eenﬂdent}ahty

Assistance-Programs- (Dwxe:en%byﬁede#a#%egulatmn- 42~GFR—43~1 -subpart Eaﬂdiay
Oregon-Revised-Statutes-PGCMs-shall-ensure-that-confidentiality-of PGM-Members'
medicalrecerds-and-other-medicabinformationis-maintained-as-required-by-state-law;
ineluding-ORS-433.045(3) with-respest-to-HiV-testinformation-

inspection- aﬂd—e*ammaneﬂ—ef-QGM—Member«me@eaHeeem

%)%‘at Auth-ORE-4143-042

I:
'E

440-141-0740



MentaLHea&%ﬁDM%%ePf%MH}«S{a SO
need-of study-review-or-improvement;
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guality-assurance- ergamzat%ans ----- OF-| pr@fess;@nai FEVIEW- @rgamzattanaaﬁ)pmved by the

te--pmwdeqeguaht%ca{e—te—m embers—

(2)y-The-Division- and AMH ee}nducts centmueusané peﬂedicwremewg of-enroliment-and

Figl htsm anei @ther mei%caters-eﬁquahty-af—ear&

{a)-The-Bivision-and- AMH-contract-with-an-external-medical-review-organization-te
monitor-the-treatment-of- speczﬂecend{tae% agamstmat{@ ek s%ana\ards f@r treatment-of

diabetes-inp Fegnaney—

{b)-The-Division-and-AME-evalu ate-the-management-of-adult-and-child-preventive
services-through-external-medical-review-and-through-its-researeh-and- evaluation

pmgmmﬁhese%e%%&ar&ewh&a@e&u&ﬂwmé—%a%ﬁerwdadmge%ﬂa
formental-health-and-SUD-treatmentsereenings:

Stat-Auth--ORS-4143-042
Stats—Implemented-0ORS-414-651
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(4~u)~-P@Msrs»ha—ilr-havemwr-i%tewpmeeéu—reswhieh—ensu%ewthatwpﬁimaw—ea{eﬂn»eiud-i-ng
Preventive-Services -is-accessible-te-RCM-Members-

.(--2-")»~-$h@--—-P—@M—S—4‘3ha-%-l—-net---é-iseﬁmimatembetweenwil?mGM«Membe-r-sma-neiwn-em-WP-G-Mmmemb@r

@3
a%eapp&te&ma%e—te—th&reaseﬂ%f@ e-visi! i

needs: M@%&W%mﬂwt%%wewmmw&{sﬂnew@%
Member-initial-assessment):

{%MMM%%%@@WW%W%MW
r@seh@du&lﬂge#&ﬁp@%%ﬂt&as@eeme@medwaﬂ%aﬁ%aﬁate—aﬂd—d@eumema@eﬂm
the-PCM-membermedical-record-of-broken-appoeintments-and-recall-efforts:

(8- When-not-an-emergenecy-walk-in i o
appeintrment-as- M%{%WAQQW@HMMH«M@*}M&

{9) PCM& shan havewprecedures tha%eneuremth&mamteﬁaﬁce of telephene ceverage

reqwemenﬁwwrmng%ecauseeﬁhe@@M&subm;saeﬁmef—an—aﬁematweﬁl%ma%wﬂ
provide-equal-or-improved-telephene-aceess:

{10y P(}Ms shail ensure«that the- @era@ns F@&p@ﬂé&ﬂg to-telephone-calls-enter-relevant

H2-PCMs-sh: a%%w%%mﬁh%eﬂ%%tm&mwwsweﬂwa%
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rytia
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wat fewetwweaﬂ%«pﬁm&ﬁate—s}waﬁeﬂ%

e + el a BTt atolalal mhfxr fa¥al encouUra
have-sufficient-communication-sk nbers-and-epcoura
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A3y PCMs-are-expected-to-have-aplanteo-accessgualified-interpreters-who-can
interpretin-the-priman-language-ef-each-substantial population-of-nen-English-speaking
POM m@mbers e plan shall-address-the f}F@ViS?GMf mtefpreter-----servmes by -phene

pﬁmaﬁ,ﬂaﬂguag%eﬂh : i i
effectively—~A-substantial- p@p kb iat&ems%&nem—&n ghs h{sﬁeakmg heuee heka*@»eﬂ FO! éled
with-the-Rrimary-Care-Manager-which-have- th&samwanguagem P nen-Enghsh
speaking-househeoldis-a t-doe M >

capabl %ﬁ%mmumeaﬁagaﬂ%ng%ﬁ

14)-PCMs-shall-provide-education-on-the-use-of servicesincluding-Urgent-Care
Services-and-Emergency-ServicesThe-Division-may-provide-Rrimarny-Care-Managers

with-appropriate-written-information-ef- the U5e-0f- &erwees - th@ ganmary Jranguagew@f

45y PCMs-shall-ensure-thatwhen-a-Medical-Practitionerdoes-notrespond-to-a
telephone-eall-there-are-written-protocels- specrfymg when - praetit;@ner -ust-be

RCM's-after-hours- eafeu—Shethe—QGMJ@%nable»i@aci as—PGM—f@F-theuP@M
member,-the-RPCM-shall- desighate-a-substitute-RPCM-

H-H-PCMs-shall-ensure
Act-of1900-

(18)-PCMs-shall ensure-that-services-facilities-and personnelare-prepared-to-meet-the
special-needs-of-visually-and-hearing-impaired-RPCM-members-

(19)-PCMs-shall-arrange-for-services-to-be-provided-by-referral-providers-when-the-PGM
does-not-have-the-capability-to-serve-specific-disabled-pepulations-:

Hist-HR-7-1994 - f-&cert-ef-2-1-94- HR-17-1995,£-0-28-05-cert-ef-10-1-06-OMAR
26-2000,1-9-28-00cert-ef-10-1-00-OMAR-61-2003-9-5-03-cert-ef-10-1-03

440-144-0780
Oregon-Health-Plan-Primary-Care Manager-(RPCM}-Complaint-Procedures
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(a)-PCMs shall-have-proces

Miafinitiong:
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104440000
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Hﬁgee@eFaie‘J}f—the-»P—GMMembep

through-the-Division-of Medical-Assistance-Programs

Nivdeinan) asrina nracosce  Camplainte ara defined in-OAR-4

TV

Members-the-full-use-ofthe-procedures,and-sha

decides-to-pursue-a-remedy
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kept-confidential-except

rmay-ask-the-PGM

-informationto-those-persons-and

tor-hearingrequest—Fthe-PGM-shall
) horizationf I ' lical
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{-PCMs-shall-have-procedures

that DMAP-has-a-right-to-this-information-without-a-signed

au%heﬂzaﬁeﬂieweleaseehﬂeé%eaﬁﬂﬁemmﬁa%mﬁ&%M“membemﬁaM
Mermbermakes-a-Complaint-orfil } ,
forrelease-of-medical

Memberto-sigh-an-authorization

-resolve-the-Gomplain

inform-the-PCM-memberthat-fally

to-the-extent-necessany-to

Complaint-procedures:which-shall-nclude-the-fellowing:

(-B}--Aas—ur-ane—em-—aHAN-F%tte&ane#paste@mateﬁal«--eﬁP-GM-nmemberwee-nﬁ»ei@mial—i%y—-iﬂ-«the

he-Complai

(A Written-raterial-deseribing-t

documenting-PCM-member-GComplaints:

(e}-RCMs-shall-have-procedures-forthe

tion-and-documentation-of-all

ke-available-copies-of-the-Gomplaint

ipk-dispesi

reeet

Complaints-from-PCM-members-PCMs-shalbma

forms-(DMAR-300H—PCM-memb

Complaints=A-PCM-membermay

ing-manner:
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-(A%&f%»%—}@»»ﬁ@%ﬂ@ﬁ}b@%dieaies-dissatisiaeﬁeaﬁhe@@%e%siaﬁﬁeps@%hauedvise

the-PCM-member-that-he-orshe-may-make-a-Complaint;

staff-person-by-stating this-is-a-Gomplaint:
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deseribed-in- subseeﬁenﬁé{h}»eﬂh%%eﬁe&m—addm@m%pF%@dﬁp@&f@p@@#@%&eﬂ
Complaints:

{Eg-Adk G@mMamts rhade-te-the- P(}M staﬁmpepsen eie&gnated%& r@cefve}@@mplam%@ shal%

Er-H-the-RPCM-denies-a-service-orservice-coverage - the-PCM-shall-notify-the-PCM
member-of-the-right-to-a-hearing-

H-Oral-Complaints:

(A-H-the-RPCM-member-chooses-to- Qur@u@ thew(«lempiamt erally thr@ugh the-PCM's
internal-Complaint-procedure;the- RPCM-< :

%M%H%W&%G@%W@M—em
H-Make-a-descision-onthe-Complaint-or

(i)-Netify-the-PCM-memberip-writing-that-a-delay-in-the-PCM's-decision-of-up-to-30
calendar-days-frorm-the-date-the-oral-Complaint-was-received-by-the-PCM-is-necessary

te-reselve-the-Ceomplaint—The-PCM-shall-specify-the reasons-the-additional-ime is

mem b@mf—%he}r—ﬂghﬁe 8- heaﬂng,

{GH-the-PECM-memberindicates-dissatisfaction-with-the-decision,-the-RCM-shall-notify
the PCM memb@r that-the-RPCM-membermay-pursue-the-Complaint-furtherwith-a

to-provide-the-reguested-information-within-30-ealendar- day&ef the-reguest-by-the-RGM;

or-anothermutually-agreed-upon-time-framethe-Complairtmay-be-resolved-against



(»(;)—Tih-e,LPGM%—dee%s%en«shm!_have%heﬂeﬁc&ef—l#eaﬁngRigh%s%@k%@%@%@)-aﬁaehed—,

h)-Complaints- CGncemmgmdemaL@f semce@r-»semce eeverage Hea Gempiamt mad@ {6

a-service-coverage-decision;-the | i i

GComplaint- pFeceeieF@s_ilihe—Fl@M—s%aﬁwperseﬁ—sha#a @t#y%h (;Mmembemﬂ«w%ﬂ g-of
the-decision-which-denied-the-service-or-coverage-within-five-working-days—Ihe
decision-lettershall-include-atleast the following-elements:

(A)-The-servicerequested:
(B)-A-statementof service-denial;

(D) As X - ,
thatin-ordertoreqg ues%—%ueh@ hea%mg%he%Mmembe&must«sabmﬁ—a« anHeaﬁﬂg
Reguest-Form-(CAF-443)-to-the-PCM-members-Authority-offiee- within-45-calendar-days

of-the date-of the PCM's-decision-on-an-oralorwritten-Complaint-concerning-denial-of
sepvice-or-senice-coverage;

UsHRG- the PCM G G@mpiamt {areeedur&

(F)-A-copy-of-the-Notice-of Hearing-Rights-(BMAR-3030)-and-Fair-Hearing-Request
(CAF-443)-shall-be-attached:

H-PCM-Member-use-of PGM-Complai

{A}Mh&@@%&ﬂ;@mb@%h@ St i
Division-hearing- ﬁ%@@%’{h&%&\#ﬁh %ensu%e«tha%e&heﬁhe—@remma mt—preeeéws
completed-prior-to-the-date-on-which-the-Division- h@aﬂn@l&SGh@du#ed or-obtain-the

ey |2

immediately- sané%uehwmteneeﬂseﬁme%he &vxs&ewaﬂdam«the—leca4~Auth@r+ty~@fﬁee»

(BY-TFhe-RCM-staff person-shall-encourage-the- PCM-memberto-use-the-PCMs
Complaint-procedure-first-but-shall-not-discourage-the-PCM- member-from-requesting-a
Division-hearing;

(G- th%m%mwﬁfm%%@%%%%@%@ﬁ%haﬂ

immediately-notify-the- PG on-hea
the- %M—M@Fﬂb@%@@ﬂ%@ﬂ%—




the—@emg%upemeeew%eﬁhe—@empiamﬁegamles&efwhetheﬁh@ﬁ@wembe@
seeks-a-Division-hearing-or-elects-the-Cemplaint-process;-or-both;

(E)-H-a-Division-hearing-s- requested by-a-REM- member PCM-shalt- ceaperate m the

{-Sheuld-a-PCM-Member-feel- that-his-or-her-medical-problem-cannot-waitdor-the
normal-RPCM-review-process;- mc%ue%mg the- PCM ‘'s-final-resolution; atwthe P(}Mmembeaf S

Division- heamag——'? h@ ins&en me&‘real ehreei@r shail_deadewﬁhmwa@ neaty-as
possible—two-working-days-if-that PCM-member-is-entitled-te-an-expedited-Division
hearing-

(;@mplamts%a#be‘mamamedi@p&mmmm@f%w—eaieﬂéawea%s—ﬂrem%aieeu@f
resolution:

(3)y-RPCMs-shall-review-and-analyze-all-Complaints-
(4)-PCMs-shall-comply-with-and-fully-implement-the-Divisien-hearing-deeision-—Neither
;m&!emeﬂ%%e%@a%%%heamgéee&%ﬁ@%%bw&a&sﬁ%&
[ED-NOTE-Formsreferenced-are-available-from-the-ageney:}
Stat-Auth--ORS-413-042

Stats—tmplemented-ORS-414-651

Hist-HR-7-10944-8cert-—e 4 '
”@?@G@—%Q%Meﬁ%%%@im&eeﬁwwg

449-141-0800
Oregon-Health-Plan-Primary Care-Manager-(PCMHnformational- Requirements

B)-The-Division- @fMedrcal Ass;stance_»ngrams{Dw;s&en}&hal pfewde basic-medels

membe%—a%i&ély«mﬁeﬂﬂe - d-a
Pisenreliment-and-Complat nt—pehaes—



Stat-Auibh-ORE-413.042
Stats—tmplemented-ORS- 414651
Hist:-HR-7-1904.f- & cert-ef-2-1-04- OMAR-81-2003,8-5-03-cert-et-10-1-03

410-141-0820

%h_aﬁﬂg.wm b1y
@mepgeﬁey—facﬂme@ an&lc}{gem@a{e—

{H-TFhe-Division-of-Medical-Assistance-Programs-{Division)-shall-provide-basie
information-abeutthe-use-ef-RCM-sepvices-in-a-REM-Member-Handbook;

2yRPCMs-shall-provide-new-RPECM-Members-with-written-information-sufficientfor-the
PCM-Member-to-use-the-PCM's-services-appropriately—\Written-information-shall
contain;-at-a-minimum-the-fellowing-elements:
(a}-Location-and-ofiice-hours-ol-the-RCM:
{b-Felephone numberio call-for more-infermation;
{e)-Use-of-the-appointment-system;

{)-tse-of-the-referral-system;

(e)-How-to-ascess-Urgent-Gare-Sepvices-and-advice:
H-Hee-atbmergeney-Sordees-and

{gr-infermatien-onthe-Complaintprocess.

@ndeaver to- pr—ewée#xealth@dueat@n—m 8- emw%al%ens&taxf@maﬂner - @rdeﬁe
communicate-most-effectively-with-individuals-from-nen-dominant-cultures:

{(4-RCMs-shall-develop-an-educational-plan-for PCM-Members-for-health-prometion;

disease-and-accident-prevention-and-patient-self-care—The-Division-may-assistin

developing-materials-that-address-specifically-identified-health-education-problems-to
the-populationin-need-



StatsIimplemented:-0R&-444.654
Hist--HR-7-1994-f-& cert-ef-2-1-94:-OMAR-61-2003;-9-5-03;-cert-ef-10-1-4140-144-
0846

Responsibilities

B-Rrimary-Care-Managers{PCM)-shall-ensure-that RCM-members-are-treated-with-the
same-privacy;-dignity-and-respeet-as-otherpatients-whe-receive-services-from-the
PEMs-

(2)-PCM-members-have-both-rights-and-responsibiliies-as-fellows:

{ay-RPCM-members-have-the-right ] Uz
have- the#espeﬁ&bm%y%e%eep_appe{mmemsﬂqadew%%he—%w

(b} PCM-members-have-the-right-to-Preventive-Servces—PCM-members-have-the
responsibility-to-seek-periodic-health-exams-for-children-and-adults-based-on-Medically

seek -t dlagnesuc SEVICes frem therGM except—m -af-SMergeney-

(d) F’OM members-have- %hemnght -o- appr@pma%& Urgent Care%erv&cesm -and- Emergency

sepiees wheneve{:pessrbl&

(A)-RPCM-members-have-the-right-to-written-information-on-how-to-access-emergeney
ea;e«and wrgent-care-PoM-members- have%hewrespeﬂs;bmty teuse emergency-care

rpayment-for-Emergeney-Services-hasb
QCMmemb%mayureques%a%eaﬂng—befem_a@%ww@Med&al%manee
Programs-(Division)-representative-if their-Complaintis-not-acted-on;-te-their
satisfaction-by-the-PGM:

{Bi-in-additionto-access-to-emerygs

following-Triage-services:

H-A-service-which-allows-RPCM-members-to-aceess-Primary-Gare-Managed-Services
and-contact-the-RCM-on-a-24-hour-7-day-a-week-basis-when-the-RPCM-member
requires-urgent-or-emergency-care;



problem;-and- whether—er—neﬁhemp—@M wﬁ#—meeHh@PGMMembthe%

i-To-have-a-health-professional-available-to-Triage-urgent-care-a nd-emergencies-for
PCM-members-during-regular-working-hours-This-service-ineludes-individuals-whe-walk
in-forsepvice-orwho-telephone-for-assessment:

MM%@WW@#MM%M%W@HW
Managers- referral when-their-condition-warrants-a-referral-PCM-Members-have-the
responsibility-to-access-specialty-serviees-through-referral-by-the-Primary-Gare

pa\cewra{eMMem :
inclusion-into-the-record-and-to S
Pf%id@?Wh@WChﬁﬁgfﬁg@@V&d@FS—

(g)—PQM%embe#&have%he%ghﬁ&MeémaﬂyApp%gmaMw@re&se@wees—wh&hmeet
generally- aceepte»d staﬂdards of- pract}ce F’GM Membeps havemt-he nght to-information
prep%eém@%&%ﬂe%%mmmmeﬂgmgwiw@anw%emmeﬁded
u@wm@s -REM- M@mbers have-the- re&p@m&bmty fo-tse- themmfermah@n te- makemfarmed

{W@M%@WWW@W%&WM@M%&%W
including-the-right-to-accept-orrefuse-medical-orsurgical-treatment- -and-the-right-to
execute-directives- aﬂé powers-of- attem@y«f@r health-eare- Th{sm-nght SEe estabhshedwand

beﬁ%&laﬁ%&k&%%-&ﬁd%&%&e%ﬂ%%ﬂﬂg&ﬂ%%
PGM%@@WhWW{MM%@H&GM@%@%&W{M%
Primary-Care-Manager-and-to-sign-a-authorizationfor-release- of-pertinent-files-and
medicalrecords:

Stat-Auth--ORE-413-042
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Oregon Health Plan Primary-Care-Manager-and-Patient Centered Primary Care
Home Provider Qualification and Enroliment

(1) Definitions:

(a) ACA-qualified conditions will be posted on the agency website. The types of
conditions include a mental health condition, substance use disorders, asthma,
diabetes, heart disease, BMI over 25 or for patients under the age of 20 (The equivalent
measure would be BMI equal or greater than 85 percentile.), HIV/AIDS, hepatitis,
chronic kidney disease, and cancer,

(b) An ACA-qualified patient is a patient who meets the criteria described in these rules
as authorized by Section 2703 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act;

(c) ACA-qualified patients are individuals with:
(A) A serious mental health condition; or
(B) At least two chronic conditions proposed by the state and approved by CMS; or

(C) One chronic condition and at risk of another qualifying condition as described
above:

(i) Providers and plans are to use information published by the US Preventive Services
Task Force, Bright Futures, and HRSA Women’s Preventive Services when making
decisions about the particular risk factors for an additional chronic condition that may
lead a patient with one chronic condition to meet the criteria of one chronic condition
and at risk of another;

(ii) The conditions and risk factors shall be documented in the patient’s medical record.
(d) Core services are defined as:

(A) Comprehensive Care Management is identifying patients with high risk
environmental or medical factors; including patients with special health care needs who
will benefit from additional care planning. Care management activities may include, but
are not limited to, population panel management, defining and following self-
management goals, developing goals for preventive and chronic iliness care,
developing action plans for exacerbations of chronic ilinesses, and developing end-of-
life care plans when appropriate;



(B) Care coordination is an integral part of the PCPCH. Care coordination functions will
include the use of the person-centered plan to manage such referrals and monitor follow
up as necessary. The Division shall assign clients to a provider, clinic, or team to
increase continuity of care and ensure responsibility for individual client care
coordination functions; including, but not limited to:

(i) Tracking ordered tests and notifying all appropriate care-givers and clients of results;

(i) Tracking referrals ordered by its clinicians including referral status and whether
consultation results have been communicated to clients and clinicians; and

(iii) Directly collaborating or co-managing clients with specialty mental health and
substance abuse and providers of services and supports to people with developmental
disabilities and people receiving long-term care services and supports. (The Division
strongly encourages co-location of behavioral health and primary care services.)

(C) Health promotion is demonstrated when a PCPCH provider supports continuity of
care and good health through the development of a treatment relationship with the
client, other primary care team members, and community providers. The PCPCH
provider shall promote the use of evidence-based, culturally sensitive wellness and
prevention by linking the client with resources for smoking cessation, diabetes, asthma,
self-help resources, and other services based on individual needs and preferences. The
PCPCH shall use health promotion activities to promote patient and family education
and self-management of their ACA-qualifying conditions;

(D) Comprehensive transitional care is demonstrated when a PCPCH emphasizes
transitional care with either a written agreement or procedures in place with its usual
hospital providers, local practitioners, health facilities and community-based services to
ensure notification and coordinated, safe transitions, as well as improve the percentage
of patients seen or contacted within one-{+} week of facility discharges;

(E) Individual and family support services are demonstrated when a PCPCH has
processes in place for:

(i) Patient and family education;
(i) Health promotion and prevention;
(i) Self-management supports; and

(iv) Information and assistance to obtain available non-health care community
resources, services, and supports.

(F) Referral to community and social support services is demonstrated through the
PCPCH's processes and capacity for referral to community and social support services,



such as patient and family education, health promotion and prevention, and self-
“management support efforts, including available community resources.

(e) Patient Centered Primary Care Home (PCPCH) pursuant to OAR 409-055-0010(7)
is defined as a health care team or clinic as defined in ORS 414.655, meets the
standards pursuant to OAR 409-055-0040, and has been recognized through the
process pursuant to 409-055-0040;

(fy A PCPCH “team” is interdisciplinary and inter-professional and must include non-
physician health care professionals; such as a nurse care coordinator, nutritionist, social
worker, behavioral health professional, community health workers, personal heaith
navigators, and peer wellness specialists authorized through sState plan or waiver
authorities. (Community health workers, personal health navigators, and peer wellness
specialists are individuals who meet criteria established by the Oregon Health Authority,
have passed criminal history background check, and in the judgment of the Authority,
hiring agency, and licensed health professional approving the patient centered plan,
have the knowledge, skills, and abilities to safely and adequately provide the services
authorized.) These PCPCH professionals may operate in a variety of ways; such as free
standing, virtual, or based at any of the clinics and facilities;

(g) Person-centered plan is defined as the plan that shall be developed by the PCPCH
and reflect the client and family/caregiver preferences for education, recovery, and self-
management as well as management of care coordination functions. Peer supports,
support groups, and self-care programs shall be utilized to increase the client and
caregivers knowledge about the client’s health and health-care needs. The person-
centered plan shall be based on the needs and desires of the client including at least
the following elements:

(A) Options for accessing care;
(B) Information on care planning and care coordination;

(C) Names of other primary care team members when applicable; and
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-(2) Enrollment requirements:

(

{Aa) Apply to and be “recognized” as a PCPCH by the Oregon Health Authority
(Authority) as organized in accordance with relevant Oregon Office of Health Policy and
Research (OHPR) administrative rules (OAR 409-055-0000 to 409-055-0090), the
Division administrative rules (chapter 410, division 141), and OHPRs Oregon Patient




Centered Primary Care Home Model, dated October 2011 and found at
www.primarycarehome.oregon.gov. The Authority grants PCPCH recognition only when
a practice, site, clinic, or individual provider is successful in the application process with
the Authority;

(ib) The type of practice, site, clinic, or individual provider that may apply to become a
PCPCH includes physicians (family practice, general practice, pediatricians,
gynecologists, obstetricians, Internal Medicine), Certified Nurse Practitioner and
Physician Assistants, clinical practices or clinical group practices (FQHCs; RHCs; Tribal
clinics; Community health centers; Community Mental Health Programs and Drug and
Alcohol Treatment Programs with integrated Primary Care Providers);

(iic) PCPCH services will occur under the direction of licensed health professionals,
physicians, physician assistants, nurse practitioners, nurses, social workers, or
professional counselors:

(A) PCPCH providers must complete the enrollment process in order to receive
reimbursement (OAR 410-120-1260), except as otherwise stated in OAR 410-120-1295.
The Provider Enrollment Attachment (attachment to the Provider Enroliment
Agreement) sets forth the relationship between the Division and the PCPCH site
(recognized clinic or provider) to receive payment for providing PCPCH services under
OHP-OAR 410-141-0860;

(B) New PCPCH enrollment shall be effective on or after October 1, 201 1, or the date
established by the Division upon receipt of required information; (Note: PCPCH tier
enroliment changes shall be effective the first of the next month or a date approved by
the Division.)

(C) The PCPCH enrollment process requires the PCPCH submit a list of fee-for-service
(FFS) clients to the Division in a format approved by the Division. The PCPCH must
identify current @HP-clients being treated within their practice. The PCPCH shall identify
that patients are ACA qualified or not as defined in these rules;

(D) PCPCHs serving clients enrolled in a managed care organization (MCO, FCHP, or
PCO) must consult the MCO on the procedures for developing an OHP-client list. The
MCO shall submit the list of their identified clients to the Division. Identified client lists

are submitted to the Division so that the Division can assign the appropriate clients to

the PCPCH and begin making payments for services rendered, all in accordance with

relevant OARs;

(E) Termination of PCPCH enroliment shall be the date established by the Authority. All
providers shall comply with Provider Sanctions as outlined in OAR 410-120-1400.

(3) Payment: The Division shall make per member per month (PMPM) payments based
on the PCPCH clinic’s recognized tier and on the patient's ACA status:-



(a) PCPCH payments are made as follows:

(A) For fee-for-service (FFS) ACA-qualified patients, the amount of the PMPM shall be
based on the PCPCH tier:

(i) $10 for tier 1;
(i) $15 for tier 2 and;
(iii) $24 for tier 3.

(B) For FFS non-ACA-qualified patients, the amount of the PMPM shall be based on the
PCPCH tier:

(i) $2 for tier 1;
(i) $4 for tier 2 and;
(iii) $6 for tier 3.

(b) For MCO enrolled ACA-qualified members, MCOs are responsible for payment to
PCPCH providers assigned to the PCPCH. MCOs shall make payments to PCPCH
clinics in accordance with OAR 409-055-0030. If an MCO retains any portion of the
PCPCH payment, that portion shall be used to carry out functions related to PCPCH
and is subject to approval and oversight by the Division;

(c) MCOs that wish to use PCPCH payment methodology and amount different from the
Division must receive Division approval,

(d) The Division shall not provide additional PMPM payment to the MCOs for non-ACA-
qualified members. For MCO enrolled non-ACA-qualified members, PCPCH payment
responsibility will be integrated into MCOs capitation payments and covered services at
the next opportunity to revise capitation rates expected on or near July 1, 2012;

(e) MCOs must use an alternative payment methodology that supports the Division’s
goal of improving the efficiency and quality of health services for primary care homes by
decreasing the use of FFS reimbursement models. PMPM payment is an alternative
methodology;

(f) It is the Division’s intention that the PCPCH pProgram will not duplicate other similar
services or programs such as PGM-and-medical case management, and the Authority
shall not make PCPCH payments for patients who participate in these programs. The
Division may review on a program to program basis if care coordination programs are
complimentary with PCPCH.

(4) Client Assignment:



| (a) OHP-Clients' participation with PCPCH is voluntary. ©HP-Clients can opt out at any
time from a PCPCH,;

(b) The Division will provide client notice of PCPCH assignment including information
‘ about benefits of PCPCH and how to notify the Division if they wish to opt out;-

(c) The Division shall remove PCPCH assignment from clients who choose not to
t participate in a PCPCH Pprograms;

(d) Upon completion of PCPCH enroliment process and approval from CMS, the
Division will implement PMPM payments for non-ACA patients who are not enrolled in
an FCHP or PCO. The Division will integrate this service into rate setting and managed
care responsibilities at the first available opportunity. This provision only affects the
start-up phase of the program and is acknowledgment of a more gradual
implementation than was originally intended,

(e) Clients assigned must have full medical eligibility with either Oregon Health Plan
(OHP) Plus (BMH, BMP, BMM or BMD) benefit plans. This excludes CAWEM Plus
(CWX) and QMB (MED) only.

(5) Documentation Requirements:

(a) The PCPCH must coordinate the care of all assigned clients who do not choose to

| opt out of the PCPCH pPRrogram to ensure they have a “person-centered plan” that has
been developed with the client or the client’s caregiver. The PCPCH must provide an
assigned client with at least one of the six “core” services as defined in Oregon State

| Medicaid Plan each quarter and document the service(s) in the medical record in order
to be eligible for payment;

| (b) PCPCHs shall assure that the patient's engagement, education, and agreement to
participate in the PCPCH program are documented within six months of initial
participation;

(c) PCPCHs shall assure that for each patient, providers are working with the patient to
develop a person-centered plan within six months of initial participation and revise as
needed;

(d) For ACA-qualified patients, PCPCH clinics shall provide one of the six core services
or an activity that is defined in the service definition at least quarterly. Documentation of
the services provided must be kept in the patient’'s medical record;

(e) PCPCHs shall assure that they notify the Division when a patient moves out of the
service area, terminates care, or no longer receives primary care from the PCPCH clinic
as stated in OAR 410-141-0080 and 410-141-0120. Patient assignment shall be
terminated at the end of the month for which PCPCH services terminated, unless a



move to another PCPCH provider begins primary care before the end of the month. In
this situation, the disenrollment and payment will be prorated:;

(f) PCPCH clinics and MCOs must report to the Division a complete list of their Medicaid
PCPCH patients; no less than quarterly. The Division will not make payments for
patients that are not reported on these quarterly reports or for patients where
documentation requirements are not met. PCPCH clinics and MCOs may provide the
Division information on new member assignments or termination member assignments
on a more frequent basis if they desire;

(g) PCPCH clinics must log on to the PCPCH provider portal, which will be available at
www.primarycarehome.oregon.gov, no less than quarterly. In conjunction with
submission of the quarterly patient list, logging on to the PCPCH provider portal serves
as evidence that the clinic has complied with the service and documentation
requirements. Clinics will have the opportunity to track quality measures through the
portal and use this as a panel management tool;

(h) PCPCH clinics that have their own information technology system can use their own
system as an alternative to the PCPCH provider portal. To do this, PCPCH clinics must:

(A) Be able to document quarterly usage of the system for panel management
purposes; and

(B) Submit a request in writing to the Division to utilize their system as an alternative.
The Division will respond to each request in writing.

(i) MCOs, no later than the 15th of January, April, July, and October, shall provide the
Division with the following information for the preceding quarter:

(A) Number of clinics or sites that meet PCPCH standards;

(B) Number of pRrimary c&are Rproviders in those service delivery sites;

(C) Number of patients receiving primary care in those sites; and

(D) Number of ACA-qualified patients receiving primary care at those sites.

(j) PCPCH shall provide their Division PCPCH clinic number when referring a patient to
another provider to ensure it is added to the claim as a referring provider. The PCPCH
will also need to document the referral in the patient's medical record.

[ED. NOTE: Forms referenced are available from the agency.]

Stat. Auth.: ORS 413.042, 414.065;
Stats. Implemented: ORS 414.065



410-141-3080
Disenrollment from Coordinated Care Organizations

(1) All member-initiated requests for disenrollment from a Coordinated Care
Organization (CCO) or Dental Care Organization (DCO) shall be initiated orally or in
writing by the primary person in the benefit group enrolled with a CCO or DCO, where
primary person and benefit group are defined in OAR 461-001-0000, 461-001-00353,
and 461-110-0750, respectively. For members who are not able to request
disenrollment on their own, the request may be initiated by the member's
representative.

(2) In accordance with 42 CFR 438.56(c)(2), the Authority, CCO, or DCO shall honor a
member or representative request for disenrollment for the following:

(a) Without cause:

(A) Newly eligible members may change their CCO or DCO assignment within 12
months following the date of initial enrollment. The effective date of disenroliment shall
be the first of the month following the Division’s approval of disenroliment;

(B) At least once every 12 months;

(C) Existing members may change their CCO or DCO assignment within 30 days of the
Authority’s automatic assignment or reenroliment in a CCO or DCO;

(D) In accordance with ORS 414.645, members may disenroll from a CCO or DCO
during their redetermination (enroliment period) or one additional time during their

" enrollment period based on the member’s choice and with Authority approval. The
disenrollment shall be considered “recipient choice.”

(b) With cause:
(A) At any time,

(B) Due to moral or religious objections, the CCO or DCO does not cover the service
the member seeks;

(C) When the member needs related services (for example a cesarean section and a
tubal ligation) to be performed at the same time, not all related services are available
within the network, and the member’s primary care provider or another provider
determines that receiving the services separately would subject the member to
unnecessary risk; or

(D) Other reasons including, but not limited to, poor quality of care, lack of access to
services covered under the contract, or lack of access to participating providers who are



experienced in dealing with the member's health care needs. Examples of sufficient
cause include, but are not limited to:

(i) The member moves out of the CCO or DCO's service area;

(i) The member is a Native American or Alaskan Native with Proof of Indian Heritage
who wishes to obtain primary care services from his or her Indian Health Service facility,
tribal health clinic/program, or urban clinic and the Fee-For-Service (FFS) delivery
system,

(iii) Continuity of care that is not in conflict with any section of OAR 410-141-3060 or this
rule. Participation in the ©HRPOregon Health Plan, including coordinated care or dental
care, does not guarantee that any GHP-member has a right to continued care or
treatment by a specific provider. A request for disenroliment based on continuity of care
shall be denied if the basis for this request is primarily for the convenience of an OHP
member or a provider of a treatment, service, or supply; including, but not limited to, a
decision of a provider to participate or decline to participate in a CCO or DCO;

(iv) As specified in ORS 414.645, the Authority may approve the transfer of 500 or more
members from one CCO or DCO to another CCO or DCO if:

(I) The member’s provider has contracted with the receiving CCO or DCO and has
stopped accepting patients from or has terminated providing services to members in the
transferring CCO or DCO; and

(1) Members are offered the choice of remaining enrolled in the transferring CCO or
DCO; and

(li1y The member and all family (case) members shall be transferred to the provider’s
new CCO or DCO; and

(IV) The transfer shall take effect when the provider’s contract with their current CCO or
DCO contractual relationship ends; or on a date approved by the Division; and

(V) Members may not be transferred under section (2)(E)(vi) until the Division has
evaluated the receiving CCO or DCO and determined that the CCO or DCO meets
criteria established by the Division as stated in rule including, but not limited to, ensuring
that the CCO or DCO maintains a network of providers sufficient in numbers, areas of
practice and geographically distributed in a manner to ensure that the health services
provided under the contract are reasonably accessible to members; and

(V1) The Division shall provide notice of a transfer to members that will be affected by
the transfer at least 90 days before the scheduled date of the transfer.



(E) If a member's disenroliment is denied, notice of denial shall be sent to the member
pursuant to OAR 410-141-0263 and 410-141-3263 of their right to file a grievance or
request a hearing.

(c) If the following conditions are met:

(A) The applicant is in the third trimester of pregnancy and has just been determined
eligible for OHP, or the OHP client has just been re-determined eligible and was not
enrolled in a CCO or DCO within the past three months; and

(B) The new CCO or DCO the member is enrolled with does not contract with the
member's current OB provider and the member wishes to continue obtaining maternity
services from that non-participating OB provider; and

(C) The request to change CCO or DCO or return to FFS is made prior to the date of
delivery.

(d) For purposes of a member's right to file a grievance or request a hearing,
disenrollment does not include the following:

(A) Transfer of a member from a PHP to a CCO or DCO.

(B) Involuntary transfer of a member from a CCO or DCO to another CCO or DCO; or
(C) Automatic enroliment of a member in a CCO or DCO.

(e) Member disenrollment requests are subject to the following requirements:

(A) The member shall join another CCO or DCO, unless the member resides in a
service area where enrollment is voluntary, or the member meets the exemptions to
enroliment set forth in OAR 410-141-3060(4) or 410-141-0060(4), the member meets
disenroliment criteria state in 42 CFR 438.56(c)(2), or there is not another CCO or DCO

in the service area;

(B) The effective date of disenroliment shall be the end of the month in which
disenrollment was requested unless the Division approves retroactively;

(C) If the Authority fails to make a disenrollment determination by the first day of the
second month following the month in which the member files a request for
disenroliment, the disenrollment is considered approved.

(3) The CCO or DCO may not disenroll members solely for the following reasons:

(a) Because of a physical, intellectual, developmental, or mental disability;

(b) Because of an adverse change in the member's health;



(c) Because of the member's utilization of services, either excessive or lack thereof;
(d) Because the member requests a hearing;

(e) Because the member exercises their option to make decisions regarding their
medical care with which the CCO or DCO disagrees;

(f) Because of uncooperative or disruptive behavior resulting from the member’s special
needs.

(4) Subiject to applicable disability discrimination laws, the Division may disenroll
members for cause when the CCO or DCO requests it for cause; which-that includes,
but is not limited to, the following:

(a) The member commits fraudulent or illegal acts related to the member’s participation
in the OHP; such as: permitting the use of their medical ID card by others, altering a
prescription, theft, or other criminal acts. The CCO or DCO shall report any illegal acts
to law enforcement authorities and, if appropriate, to DHS Fraud Investigations Unit at
888-Fraud01 (888-372-8301) or http://www.oregon.gov/DHS/aboutdhs/fraud/ as
appropriate, consistent with 42 CFR 455.13;;

(b) The member became eligible through a hospital hold process and placed in the
Adults and Couples category as required under OAR 410-141-3060(4)

(c) Requests by the CCO for routine disenrollment of specific members shall include the
following procedures to be followed and documented prior to requesting disenrollment
of a member:

(A) A request shall be submitted in writing to the Coordinated Account Representative
(CAR). The CCO or DCO shall document the reasons for the request, provide written
evidence to support the basis for the request, and document that attempts at
intervention were made as described below. The procedures cited below shall be
followed and documented prior to requesting disenroliment of a member;

(B) There shall be notification from the provider to the CCO or DCO at the time the
problem is identified. The notification shall describe the problem and allow time for
appropriate resolution by the CCO or DCO. Such notification shall be documented in the
member's clinical record. The CCO or DCO shall conduct provider education or training
regarding the need for early intervention, disability accommodation, and the services
available to the provider;

(C) The CCO or DCO shall contact the member either verbally or in writing; if itis a
severe problem; to inform the member of the problem that has been identified and
attempt to develop an agreement with the member regarding the issue. Any contact with
the member shall be documented in the member's clinical record. The CCO or DCO



shall inform the member that their continued behavior may result in disenrollment from
the CCO or DCO;

(D) The CCO or DCO shall provide individual education, disability accommodation,
counseling, or other interventions with the member in a serious effort to resolve the
problem;

(E) The CCO or DCO shall contact the member’s care team regarding the problem and,
if needed and with the agreement of the member, involve the care team and other
appropriate individuals working with the member in the resolution; within the laws
governing confidentiality;

(F) If the severity of the problem warrants, the CCO or DCO shall develop a care plan
that details how the problem is going to be addressed and coordinate a care conference
with the member, their care team, and other individuals chosen by the member. If
necessary, the CCO or DCO shall obtain an authorization for release of information
from the member for the providers and agencies in order to involve them in the
resolution of the problem. If the release is verbal, it shall be documented in the
member's record;

(G) The CCO or DCO shall submit any additional information or assessments requested
by the Division CAR,;

(H) The Authority shall notify the member in writing of a disenrollment made as defined
in the section above;

() If the member's behavior is uncooperative or disruptive including, but not limited to,
threats or acts of physical violence as the result of his or her special needs or disability,
the CCO or DCO shall also document each of the following:

(i) A written description of the relationship of the behavior to the special needs or
disability of the individual and whether the individual's behavior poses a direct threat to
the health or safety of others. Direct threat means a significant risk to the health or
safety of others that cannot be eliminated by a modification of policies, practices, or
procedures. In determining whether a member poses a direct threat to the health or
safety of others, the CCO or DCO shall make an individualized assessment; based on
reasonable judgment that relies on current medical knowledge or best available
objective evidence to ascertain the nature, duration, and severity of the risk to the health
or safety of others : the probability that potential injury to others shall actually occur;
and whether reasonable modifications of policies, practices, or procedures shall mitigate
the risk to others;

(i) A CCO or DCO-staffed interdisciplinary team review that includes a mental health
professional or behavioral specialist and other health care professionals who have the
appropriate clinical expertise in treating the member's condition to assess the behavior,
the behavioral history, and previous history of efforts to manage behavior,



(iii) If warranted, a clinical assessment of whether the behavior will respond to
reasonable clinical or social interventions;

(iv) Documentation of any accommodations that have been attempted and why the
accommodations haven’t worked,

(v) Documentation of the CCO or DCO's rationale for concluding that the member's
continued enrollment in the CCO or DCO seriously impairs the CCO’s or DCQO’s ability
to furnish services to either this particular member or other members;-

(vi) If a Primary Care Provider (PCP) terminates the provider/patient relationship, the
CCO or DCO shall attempt to locate another PCP on their panel who will accept the
member as their patient. If needed, the CCO or DCO shall obtain an authorization for
release of information from the member in order to share the information necessary for
a new provider to evaluate whether they can treat the member. All terminations of
provider/patient relationships shall be according to the CCO or DCO's policies and shall
be consistent with CCO or DCO or PCP's policies for commercial members and with
applicable disability discrimination laws. The CCO or DCO shall determine whether the
PCP's termination of the provider/patient relationship is based on behavior related to the
member’s disability and shall provide education to the PCP about disability
discrimination laws.

(d) In addition to the requirements in subsection (c), requests by the CCO or DCO for an
exception to the routine disenroliment process shall include the following:

(A) In accordance with 42 CFR 438.56 the CCO or DCO shall submit a request in
writing to the CAR for approval. An exception to the disenroliment process may only be
requested for members who have committed an act of or made a credible threat of
physical violence directed at a health care provider, the provider's staff, other patients,
or the CCO or DCO’s staff so that it seriously impairs the CCO or DCO’s ability to
furnish services to either this particular member or other members. A credible threat
means that there is a significant risk that the member will cause grievous physical injury
to others (including but not limited to death) in the near future, and that risk cannot be
eliminated by a modification of policies, practices, or procedures. The CCO or DCO
shall document the reasons for the request and provide written evidence to support the
basis for the request prior to requesting an exception to the disenroliment process of a
member;

(B) Providers shall immediately notify the CCO or DCO about the incident with the
member. The notification shall describe the problem and be maintained for
documentation purposes;

(C) The CCO or DCO shall attempt and document contact with the member and their
care team regarding the problem and, if needed, involve the care team and other
appropriate individuals in the resolution; within the laws governing confidentiality;



(D) The CCO or DCO shall provide any additional information requested by the CAR,
the Authority, or Department of Human Services assessment team;

(E) If the member’s behavior could reasonably be perceived as the result of their special
needs or disability, the CCO or DCO shall also document each of the following:

(i) A written description of the relationship between the behavior to the special needs or
disability of the individual and whether the individual’'s behavior poses a credible threat
of physical violence as defined in section (2)(b)(C)(i) of this rule;

(i) In determining whether a member poses a credible threat to the health or safety of
others, the CCO or DCO shall make an individualized assessment; based on
reasonable judgment that relies on current medical knowledge or best available
objective evidence to ascertain the nature, duration, and severity of the risk to the health
or safety of others,; the probability that potential injury to others will actually occur,: and
whether reasonable modifications of policies, practices, or procedures will mitigate the
risk to others;

(F) Documentation shall exist that verifies the provider or CCO or DCO immediately
reported the incident to law enforcement. The CCO or DCO shall submit a copy of the
police report or case number. If a report is not available, submit a signed entry in the
member’s clinical record documenting the report to law enforcement or other
reasonable evidence;

(G) Documentation shall exist that verifies what reasonable modifications were
considered and why reasonable modifications of policies, practices, or procedures will
not mitigate the risk to others;

(H) Documentation shall exist that verifies any past incidents and attempts to
accommodate similar problems with this member;

(I) Documentation shall exist that verifies the CCO or DCO'’s rationale for concluding
that the member’s continued enroliment in the CCO or DCO seriously impairs the CCO
or DCO’s ability to furnish services to either this particular member or other members.

(e) Approval or denial of disenroliment requests shall include the following:

(A) If there is sufficient documentation, the request shall be evaluated by the CCO or
DCO’s CAR or a team of CARs who may request additional information from
Ombudsman Services; AMH-or other agencies as needed. If the request involves the
member's mental health condition or behaviors related to substance abuse, the CAR
shall also confer with the AMHK's-Division’s substance use disorder specialist;

(B) In cases where the member is also enrolled in the CCO or DCO’s Medicare
Advantage plan, the CCO or DCO shall provide proof to the Division of CMS’ approval



to disenroll the member. If approved by the Division, the date of disenrollment from both
plans shall be the disenrollment date approved by CMS;

(C) If there is insufficient documentation, the CAR shall notify the CCO or DCO within
two business days of initial receipt what supporting documentation is needed for final
consideration of the request;

(D) The CARs shall review the request and notify the CCO or DCO of the decision
within ten working days of receipt of sufficient documentation from the CCO or DCO:;-

(E) Written decisions shall be sent to the CCO or DCO within 15 working days from
receipt of request and sufficient documentation from the CAR.

(5) The following procedures apply to all denied disenrollment requests:

(a) The CAR shall send the member a notice within five days after the decision for
denial with a copy to the CCO or DCO and the member's care team-;

(b) The notice shall give the disenrollment date, the reason for disenrollment, and the
notice of the member's right to file a complaint (as specified in 410-141-0260 through
410-141-0266) and to request an administrative hearing and the option to continue
enrollment in the PHP pending the outcome of the hearing; in accordance with 42 CFR
438.420. If the member requests a hearing, the disenroliment will proceed unless the
member requests continued enroliment; pending a decision;:

(c) If disenroliment is approved, the CAR shall contact the member's care team to
arrange enroliment in a different plan. The Division may require the member to obtain
services from FFS providers er-a-RGM-until such time as they can be enrolled with
another CCO or DCO;

(d) If no other CCO or DCO is available to the member, the member will be exempt from
enrollment in that type of managed care plan for 12 months. If a member who has been
disenrolled for cause is re-enrolled in the CCO or DCO, the CCO or DCO may request a
disenrollment review by the CAR. A member may not be involuntarily disenrolled from
the same CCO or DCO for a period of more than 12 months. If the member is re-
enrolled after the 12-month period and the CCO or DCO again requests disenroliment

for cause, the request shall be referred to the OHA-Authority assessment team for
review.

(6) The following procedures apply to all approved disenroliment requests:

(a) The CAR shall send the member a notice within five days after the request was
approved with a copy to the CCO or DCO and the member's care team.

(b) The notice shall give the disenroliment date, the reason for disenroliment, and the
notice of member's right to file a complaint (as specified in OAR 410-141-3260 through



410-141-3266) and to request an administrative hearing and the option to continue
enroliment in the CCO or DCO pending the outcome of the hearing; in accordance with
42 CFR 438.420. If the member requests a hearing, the disenrollment shall proceed
unless the member requests continued enroliment pending a decision;:

(c) The disenroliment effective date will be ten calendar days after the disenroliment
notice is sent to the member; unless the member requests a hearing and ongoing
enrollment pending a hearing decision. The disenrollment shall become effective
immediately upon the issuing of an Administrative Law Judge'’s decision to uphold
disenrollment;-

(d) If disenrollment is approved, the CAR shall contact the member's care team to
arrange enrollment in a different plan. The Division may require the member to obtain
services from FFS providers er-a-REGM-until such time as they can be enrolled with
another CCO or DCO;

(e) If no other CCO or DCO is available to the member, the member shall be exempt
from enroliment in that type of managed care plan for 12 months. If a member who has
been disenrolled for cause is re-enrolled in the CCO or DCO, the CCO or DCO may
request a disenrolliment review by the CAR. A member may not be involuntarily
disenrolled from the same CCO or DCO for a period of more than 12 months. If the
member is re-enrolled after the 12-month period and the CCO or DCO or the member
again requests disenrollment for cause, the request shall be referred to the Authority’s
assessment team for review.

(7) Other reasons for the CCO or DCO's requests for disenrollment may include the
following:

(a) If the member is enrolled in the CCO or DCO on the same day the member is
admitted to the hospital, the CCO or DCO shall be responsible for the hospitalization. If
the member is enrolled after the first day of the inpatient stay, the member shall be
disenrolled and enrolled on the next available enroliment date following discharge from
inpatient hospital services; '

(b) The member has surgery scheduled at the time their enroliment is effective with the
CCO or DCO, the provider is not on the CCO or DCO's provider panel, and the member
wishes to have the services performed by that provider;

(c) The Medicare member is enrolled in a Medicare Advantage plan and was receiving
hospice services at the time of enroliment in the CCO or DCO:

(d) Excluding the DCOs, if the CCO determines that the member or MHO member has
Third Party Liability (TPL), the CCO will contact the Health Insurance Group (HIG) to
request disenroliment;



(e) If a CCO or DCO has knowledge of a member's change of address, the CCO or
DCO shall notify the member’s care team. The care team shall verify the address
information and disenroll the member from the CCO or DCO; if the member no longer
resides in the CCO or DCO's service area. Members shall be disenrolled if out of the
CCO or DCO's service area for more than three months. unless previously arranged
with the CCO or DCO. The effective date of disenrollment shall be the date specified by
the Division, and if a partial month remains, the Division shall recoup the balance of that
month's capitation payment from the CCO or DCO:

(f) The member is an inmate who is serving time for a criminal offense or confined
involuntarily in a state or federal prison, jail, detention facility, or other penal institution.
This does not include members on probation, house arrest, living voluntarily in a facility
after their case has been adjudicated, infants living with an inmate, or inmates who
become inpatients. The CCO or DCO shall identify the members and provide sufficient
proof of incarceration to the Division for review of the disenrollment request. The
Division shall approve requests for disenroliment from CCO or DCOs for members who
have been taken into custody;

(9) The member is in a state psychiatric institution.
(8) The Division may initiate and disenroll members as follows:

(a) If informed that a member has TPL, the Division shall refer the case to the HIG for
investigation and possible exemption from CCO or DCO enroliment. The Division shall
disenroll members who have TPL effective the end of the month in which HIG makes
such a determination. In some situations, the Division may approve retroactive
disenrollment;

(b) If the member moves out of the CCO or DCO's service area, the effective date of
disenrollment shall be the date specified by the Division, and the Division shall recoup
the balance of that month's capitation payment from the CCO or DCO:

(c) If the member is no longer eligible for OHP, the effective date of disenrollment shall
be the date specified by the Division:

(d) If the member dies, the last date of enrollment shall be the date of death.
(9) Unless specified otherwise in these rules or in the Division notification of
disenrollment to the CCO or DCO, all disenroliments are effective the end of the month

the Authority approves the disenroliment with the following exceptions;:

(a) The Authority may retroactively disenroll or suspend enrollment when the member is
taken into custody. The effective date shall be the date the member was incarcerated;-



(b) The Authority may retroactively disenroll enroliment if the member has TPL pursuant
to this rule. The effective date shall be the end of the month in which HIG makes the
determination.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 413.032, 414.615, 414.625, 414.635 & 414.651
Stats. Implemented: ORS 414.610 - 414.685




